
 

 

 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
The Council will listen to the public on any item on the agenda.  Under the Brown Act, Council is 

prohibited from taking action on items not on the agenda, but the matter may be referred to staff or to a 

subsequent meeting.  Each speaker will be limited to three continuous minutes, which may not be 

delegated.  These rules will be enforced but may be changed by appropriate City Council action.   

 

PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS ON THE AGENDA: 
Persons wishing to speak on any item on the agenda will be called at the time the agenda item is brought 

forward.  Persons wishing to speak on closed session items have a choice of doing so either immediately 

prior to the closed session or at the time for comments on items at the open session. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA: 
Time shall be devoted to audience participation early on the agenda.  If additional time is needed, the 

Mayor will allow for same at the end of the agenda. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CLOSED SESSION 

 

 

CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL                             

  

Mayor Capoccia, Mayor Pro Tem Goss, Council Member 

Arizmendi, Council Member Delmar, and Council Member 

Harabedian 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT                                                  Regarding Closed Session Items 

 

 

 

AGENDA  

REGULAR MEETING 

SIERRA MADRE CITY COUNCIL, 

SUCCESSOR AGENCY,  AND  

PUBLIC FINANCE AUTHORITY 

 

Tuesday, June 23, 2015 

 

5:30 pm Closed Session 

6:30 pm Open Session 

 

City Hall Council Chambers 

232 W. Sierra Madre Boulevard 

Sierra Madre,  California  91024 

 

 John Capoccia, Mayor  

Gene Goss, Mayor Pro Tem 

Rachelle Arizmendi, Council Member 

Denise Delmar, Council Member 

John Harabedian, Council Member 

 

Nancy Shollenberger, City Clerk  

Richard Mays, City Treasurer 



RECESS TO CLOSED SESSION REGARDING: 

 

 
CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL 

Pursuant to Calif. Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1) – Pending Litigation 

The City Council/Agency finds, based on advice from legal counsel, that discussion in open session will prejudice 

the position of the local agency in the litigation. 

 

Case Name: In re Petition of City of Sierra Madre Challenging 2012 Los Angeles Municipal Separate Storm Sewer 

System Permit (Order No. R4-2012-0175) 

 

Case Number: State Water Resources Control Board/Office of Chief Counsel Files A-2236(a) through (kk) 

 

 

CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL 

 

Pursuant to Calif. Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(4) 

The City Council finds based on advice from legal counsel, that discussion in open session will prejudice the 

position of the local agency in the litigation. 

 

Initiation of litigation: Number of potential cases: One   
 

 

 

 

 

 

OPEN  SESSION 

 
 

 

CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 

MEMBERS OF THE CITY COUNCIL  
 Mayor John Capoccia, Mayor Pro Tem Gene Goss, 

Council Members Rachelle Arizmendi, Denise Delmar, 

and John Harabedian 

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  AND 

INVOCATION/INSPIRATION 
 

 Mayor Pro Tem Gene Goss 

REPORT OUT FROM CLOSED SESSION  

 

 City Attorney report from the closed session. 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA  Vote of the Council to proceed with City business. 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES  Approval of minutes from the Regular City Council 

meeting on June 9, 2015. 

 

MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL REPORTS  Reports of individual Council Member activities relating 

to City business. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT  Regarding items not on the Agenda. 

 

PRESENTATION  Recognition of Victor Espinoza, 2015 Triple Crown 

Jockey 

 



ACTION ITEMS 

 

1. CONSENT  
 

  

 a) ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION 15-39 OF 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

SIERRA MADRE APPROVING CERTAIN 

DEMANDS 

 

 Recommendation that the City Council approve 

Resolution 15-39 for approval of payment of 

City Warrants in aggregate amount of 

$218,901.79; Library warrants in the aggregate 

amount of $17,813.43, and payroll transfer in the 

aggregate amount of $331,574.53 for fiscal year 

ending June 30, 2015. 

 

 b) AGREEMENT FOR COST SHARING FOR 

THE INSTALLATION OF MONITORING 

EQUIPMENT AND MONITORING 

PURSUANT TO THE HARBOR TOXIC 

POLLUTANTS TMDL 

 Recommendation that the City Council approve 

the agreement between the Los Angeles 

Gateway Region Integrated Regional Water 

Management Joint Powers Authority and the 

City of Sierra Madre for the estimated share cost 

of $1,745 for the first year/$952 for each 

subsequent year and authorize the City Manager 

to execute the agreement. 

 

 

 

 PUBLIC  HEARINGS 

 

  

2. RESOLUTION 15-34 – ADOPTION OF THE 

LOCAL DEVELOPMENT REPORT AND SELF-

CERTIFICATION OF THE CITY’S 

CONFORMANCE WITH THE CONGESTION 

MANAGEMENT PROGRAM 

 

 Recommendation that the City Council hold a 

public hearing and adopt Resolution 15-34, 

finding the City to be in conformance with the 

Congestion Management Program (CMP) and 

adopting the CMP Local Development Report, 

in accordance with California Government Code 

Section 65089 

 

3. CONSIDERATION OF FISCAL YEAR 2015-2016 

ANNUAL BUDGET AND ADOPTION OF 

RESOULTIONS: 

 RESOLUTION 15-35 ADOPTING THE 

FISCAL YEAR 2015-2016 BUDGET 

 RESOLUTION 15-36 APPROVING THE 

SALARY MATRIX 

 RESOLUTION 15-37 APPROVING THE 

FISCAL YEAR 2015-2016 FEE SCHEDULE 

 RESOLUTION 15-38 APPROVING THE 

GANN APPROPRIATIONS LIMIT FOR 

FISCAL YEAR 2015-2016 

 PFA RESOLUTION 68 ADOPTING FISCAL 

YEAR 2015-2016 PUBLIC FINANCING 

AUTHORITY BUDGET 

 

 Recommendation that the City Council hold a 

public hearing and approve Resolution 15-35 

Adopting the Fiscal Year 2015-2016 Budget 

and appropriating the amounts projected; 

Resolution 15-36 Approving an amendment 

to the Salary Matrix; Resolution 15-37 

Approving the 2015-2016 Fee Schedule; 

Resolution 15-38 Approving the GANN 

Appropriation Limits for FY 2015-2016; 

and Resolution 68 Adopting the Fiscal Year 

2015-2016 Budget by The Public Financing 

Authority. Staff further recommends the 

City Council provide direction regarding the 

committees to study contract proposals and 

potential revenue options 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 



 ITEMS  FOR  DISCUSSION 

 

  

4. RECOMMENDATION TO AUTHORIZE THE 

CITY OF ARCADIA TO SUBMIT THE RIO 

HONDO/SAN GABRIEL RIVER ENHANCED 

WATERSHED MANAGEMENT PLAN TO THE 

LOS ANGELES REGIONAL WATER QUALITY 

CONTROL BOARD ON BEHALF OF THE CITY 

OF SIERRA MADRE 

 

 Recommendation that the City Council 

authorize the City Manager to sign necessary 

documents to authorize the City of Arcadia to 

submit the Enhanced Watershed Management 

Plan to the Los Angeles Regional Water Quality 

Control Board on behalf of the City of Sierra 

Madre and the entire Working Group. 

 

5. CONSIDERATION OF REAPPOINTMENT AND 

APPOINTMENT OF APPLICANTS TO VACANT 

COMMISSIONERS’ SEATS 

 

 Recommendation that the City Council provide 

staff with direction. 

 

6. STRATEGIC PLAN FROM MAY 6, 2015 RETREAT  Recommendation that the City Council receive 

and file. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

Council is prohibited from taking action on items not on the agenda, but the matter may be referred 

to staff or to a subsequent meeting.  Each speaker will be limited to three continuous minutes, which 

may not be delegated.  These rules will be enforced but may be changed by Council action.   

 

ACTION ITEMS 

Regardless of staff recommendation on any agenda item, the City Council will consider such matters, 

including action to approve, conditionally approve, reject, or continue such item.   

 

PUBLIC HEARING 

The appellant and/or applicant will each be provided a total of ten (10) minutes to address their item.  

A portion of their allotted time may be reserved for rebuttal or a summary conclusion at the close of 

public comment.  All other speakers will be limited to a total of three continuous minutes, which 

cannot be delegated.  These rules will be enforced but may be changed by appropriate City Council 

action. 

 

AVAILABILITY OF AGENDA MATERIALS 

Materials related to items on this agenda are available for public inspection on the City’s website at 

www.cityofsierramadre.com, and during normal business hours at City Hall, 232 W. Sierra Madre 

Blvd. and at the Sierra Madre Public Library, 440 W. Sierra Madre Blvd. 

 

LIVE BROADCASTS 

Regular City Council meetings are broadcasted live on Cable Channel 3 and rebroadcast on 

Wednesday and Saturday at 5:30 p.m. 

 

MEETING ASSISTANCE 

If you require special assistance to participate in this meeting, please call the City Manager’s office at 

(626) 355-7135 at least 48 hours prior to the meeting. 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

The City Council will adjourn to a Regular Meeting at this same place on Tuesday, July 14, 2015. 

http://www.cityofsierramadre.com/


 
Agenda 

Regular Meeting of the Sierra Madre City Council,  
Successor Agency and Public Finance Authority 

Tuesday, June 9, 2015 
5:30 p.m. Closed Session; 6:30 p.m. Open Session 

City Hall Council Chambers, 232 W. Sierra Madre Boulevard 

 
 
Mayor, John Capoccia, opened the Regular Meeting of the Sierra Madre City Council, Successor Agency and 
Public Finance Authority at 5:30 p.m.  The Mayor asked for public comment and there was none.  The Mayor 
immediately adjourned to a Closed Session.  The City Council returned from Closed Session at 6:33 p.m. and 
the Mayor opened the Open Session at 6:35 p.m.  City Clerk, Nancy Sue Shollenberger, read the roll, noting 
that all City Council Members were present, except Council Member, John Harabedian, who has been excused. 
 
CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL MEMBERS OF THE CITY COUNCIL: 
 
Present:  John Capoccia, Mayor; Gene Goss, Mayor Pro Tem, Council Members 
   Rachelle Arizmendi, Denise Delmar  
 
Absent:  Council Member, John Harabedian, Excused 
 
Also Present:  Elaine Aguilar, City Manager 
   Teresa Highsmith, City Attorney 
   Bruce Inman, Director of Public Works 
   Elisa Cox, Assistant City Manager 
   Steve Heydorff, Fire Chief 
   Larry Giannone, Police Chief and Safety Officer 
   Officer Ruben Enrique, Sierra Madre Police Dept. 
   Kev Tcharkhoutian, City Engineer 
   Vincent Gonzalez, Director of Planning and Community Preservation 
   Carolyn Thomas, Director of Library Services 
   James Carlson, Management Analyst 
   Nancy Sue Shollenberger, City Clerk 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AND INVOCATION/INSPIRATION: 
 
Mayor, John Capoccia, led the Pledge of Allegiance and followed with this prayer: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE SIERRA MADRE CITY COUNCIL, 
SUCCESSOR AGENCY AND PUBLIC FINANCE AUTHORITY    Page 2 of 24 
June 9, 2015 

 
 
 Dear God in Heaven: 

Thank you once again for the blessings that you’ve bestowed on all of us.  We are very thankful to have 
the good fortune to be citizens of our little “Village of the Foothills”.  The City Council is truly blessed to 
be part of a community that is engaged in its own governance.  Our citizens are not shy about asking 
questions, analyzing issues and voicing opinions. We’re blessed to receive such robust feedback, most 
recently on R1 residential standards, demolition, preservation of historic resources, and now on our 
budget dilemma.  Please help us to carefully consider the feedback given to us by our citizens.  Help us 
to embrace the diversity of opinions, carefully consider the thoughts of those that don’t necessarily 
agree with us and likewise avoid unfairly favoring those that may be of like mind.  Help us to govern in 
a way that balances competing interests, striving for a result that sustains the community that we love 
for the present and for the future.  And again, Dear God, please help us to conduct our deliberations in 
a positive, purposeful, and productive manner, and guide our judgment in a way that honors our City, 
our constituents, our democratic traditions and way of life.  Amen. 

 
REPORT OUT FROM CLOSED SESSION: 
 
Teresa Highsmith, City Attorney, reported that the City Council met in Closed Session this evening to discuss 
the following: 
 
Conference with Legal Counsel:  Initiation of Litigation 
Pursuant to California Government code Section 54956.9(d)(4) 
Number of potential cases:  One 
 
The City Attorney reported that direction was given to the City Attorney, but no action was taken. 
 
Conference with Legal Counsel 
Pursuant to Calif. Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1) – Pending Litigation 
The City Council/Agency finds, based on advice from legal counsel, that discussion in open session will 
prejudice the position of the local agency in the litigation. 
Case Name:  In re Petition of City of Sierra Madre Challenging 2012 Los Angeles Municipal Separate Storm 
Sewer System Permit (Order No. R4-2012-0175) 
Case Number:  State Water Resources Control Board/Office of Chief Counsel Files A-2236(a) through (kk). 
 
The City Attorney reported that direction was given to legal counsel, but no action was taken. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE SIERRA MADRE CITY COUNCIL, 
SUCCESSOR AGENCY AND PUBLIC FINANCE AUTHORITY    Page 3 of 24 
June 9, 2015 

 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
 
Council Member, Rachelle Arizmendi moved and it was seconded by Mayor Pro Tem, Gene Goss, for approval 
of the Agenda as presented.  The motion passed by unanimous voice vote. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF MAY 26, 2015: 
 
Mayor Pro Tem, Gene Goss, moved and it was seconded by Council Member, Denise Delmar, for approval of 
the Minutes of May 26, 2015 as presented.  The motion passed by unanimous voice vote. 
 
MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL REPORTS: 
 

1) Council Members, Rachelle Arizmendi and Denise Delmar did not have a report for this meeting. 
2) Mayor Pro Tem, Gene Goss, reported on the following: 

a. The fantastic Town Hall Meeting held last Saturday.  The public showed up in great numbers. 
b. Thank you to Elaine Aguilar, staff, Council Members, Arizmendi and Delmar for putting the 

Town Hall meeting together.  I had a good feeling about the event. 
c. Web casting Village Vine.org – it was televised, thanks to Steve Tanner and Susan Henderson. 
d. Attended Little League Baseball – it was a real treat.  He thanked John Capoccia for coming. 

3) Mayor, John Capoccia, announced that Mayor Pro Tem’s son played at the Little League Game and Dad 
is extremely proud of him.  Also attended the Sanitation District Meeting.  The board implemented a 
rate increase on Prop 218 process. 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT: 
 
Barry Gold, Ramona Avenue 
 

Good evening Mayor Capoccia and Council Members.  Public involvement in City issues is the best way 
of knowing how residents feel.  Not every aspect of the City’s daily activities can include community 
input, that would be too cumbersome and that is why you were elected to represent us.  Some 
processes, however, are so important that community feedback is vital.  Your outreach to the 
community concerning the budget is an example.  I believe that the current police contract negotiation 
is one of the items where public input would be most valuable.  Since these negotiations are held 
behind closed doors it is difficult for the public to contribute due to a lack of knowledge.  With this in 
mind I have some thoughts I hope you will  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE SIERRA MADRE CITY COUNCIL, 
SUCCESSOR AGENCY AND PUBLIC FINANCE AUTHORITY    Page 4 of 24 
June 9, 2015 

 
 

find useful.  This City has been most generous to the Police Department over the years.  Now that we 
face a $762,000 deficit next year it is time for the Police Department to be understanding and agree to 
a temporary reduction in wages.  The contract being negotiated should be for one year only.  It is too 
difficult to know if the voters will approve a tax increase, if one is put on the ballot next April, which, by 
the way, I oppose, but any additional voter approved tax revenue will not come in until next May or 
June, so we still must cut costs this year.  By limiting the contract to one year we are not obligating 
ourselves to something we cannot sustain beyond the next 12 months.  Keeping in mind that the 
following year our deficit will be over $1,000,000 and that our future revenue is uncertain, contracting 
for more than one year would not be prudent.  Finally, I hope that before an agreement with the Police 
Department is approved the public will have a chance to comment on it.  Thank you. 

 
Mayor Capoccia closed public input. 
 
PRESENTATION: 
 
Bruce Inman, Director of Public Works, gave a slide presentation regarding water conservation. 
 
Sierra Madre Year to Date: 10.66” 
May, 2015: Water use decreased 24.9%, and approximately 18.4 million gallons less used in May 2015 than in 
May 2014. 
GPCD for May was 163, down from April’s 166. 
June, 2015:  Water Use has decreased 24.6% over the same period last year, and approximately 4.9 million 
gallons less used in June 2015 than in June 2014. 
GPCD for June: 171 
 
ACTION ITEMS: 
 

1. CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
Elaine Aguilar, City Manager, gave the following report under the Consent Calendar: 
 
1a). WARRANTS 
 

Staff is recommending approval of Resolution No. 15-31 “A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF SIERRA MADRE APPROVING CERTAIN DEMANDS, and approval for payment of 
City Warrants in the aggregate amount of $361,596.77; Sierra Madre Library Warrants in 
aggregate amount of $12,541.01 and Payroll Transfer in the aggregate amount of $364,683.87 
for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2015. 

 
 
 
 



 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE SIERRA MADRE CITY COUNCIL, 
SUCCESSOR AGENCY AND PUBLIC FINANCE AUTHORITY    Page 5 of 24 
June 9, 2015 

 
 
 
 1b). RESOLUTION NO. 15-29; ADOPTION OF MIDYEAR BUDGET UPDATE FY 2014-2015 

RESOLUTION NO. 15-30; ADOPTION OF COMMITTED GENERAL FUND BALANCES FOR FYE 2015: 
 
On June 24, 2014, the City Council approved the updated budget numbers for the FYE 2015.  
Over the past year the Council has made additional appropriations and staff has since adjusted 
the numbers with current projections.  Staff is seeking approval of Resolution No. 15-29 to 
make the necessary budget adjustments to show these amendments to the appropriations, and 
Resolution No. 15-30 committing fund balances for FYE 2015. 
 
Staff presented to the City Council the amended FY 2014-2015 Budget on April 23 and May 5, 
2015.  The revised projections showed the General Fund with a surplus of $356,000.  The City 
Council agreed t staff recommended amendments and to make the following changes to the 
General Fund Committed Reserves as of June 30, 2015. 
 
A. $125,000 for the California Joint Powers Insurance Authority Retrospective Claims Liability. 
B. $25,000 for an Integrated Library System 
 
The General Fund will carry forward five appropriations from FY 2014-2015 to the next year’s 
appropriations: 
 
A. $404,000 for Street Resurfacing or Replacement. 
B. $213,500 for Storm Drain/NPDES Projects. 
C. $160,000 for City Hall and Public Safety Building Roof Replacements. 
D. $45,000 for City Parking Lot Maintenance. 
E. $35,000 for Repainting the Library. 
 
Staff recommends the approval of Resolution No. 15-29 “A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF SIERRA MADRE ADOPTING THE MID-YEAR BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2014-2015 
AND APPROPRIATING THE AMOUNTS PROJECTED”, and Resolution No. 15-30 “A RESOLUTION 
OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SIERRA MADRE ADOPTING COMMITTED FUNDS FOR 
FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2015”. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE SIERRA MADRE CITY COUNCIL, 
SUCCESSOR AGENCY AND PUBLIC FINANCE AUTHORITY    Page 6 of 24 
June 9, 2015 

 
 
 

1c). RECOMMENDATION TO REJECT PROPOSALS FOR LIBRARY FACILITY CONDITION ASSESSMENT 
AND RE-ADVERTISE THE PROJECT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES PROPOSALS: 

 
 City Council approved a request for proposals (RFP) to solicit bids for a Library Facility Condition 

Assessment at their March 24, 2015 meeting.  Although proposals were submitted there was a 
misunderstanding regarding whether or not the successful proposer for the conditions 
assessment study would be eligible to apply for the future design work to implement the 
findings of the study. 

 
 Staff recommends rejecting the current bids, clarifying the language in the RFP to allow bidders 

the option to bid on the assessment RFP, to not exclude bidders from the design phase, and to 
re-advertise the project with the updated RFP which was attached to the Agenda. 

 
1d). CANCELLATION OF BOTH AUGUST 2015 CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS 

 
It is recommended that the City Council approve the cancellation of both regular City Council 
meetings in the month of August 2015. 

 
1e). RESOLUTION NO. 15-32 GRANTING TEMPORARY USE PERMIT 15-05 (TUP 15-05) FOR A 

HOUSEHOLD HAZARDOUS WASTE ROUND-UP EVENT: 
 
 Sierra Madre Public Works staff is working with the County of Los Angeles Department of Public 

Works and the Sanitation Districts to host the City’s 14th Household Hazardous Waste (HHW) 
Round-up.  A Temporary Use Permit (TUP) is required for the use of the Mariposa Parking Lot.  
Accordingly, staff has completed a special event application requesting a TUP and seeks City 
Council approval on this item. 

 
 Staff recommends the City Council adopt Resolution No. 15-32 “RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF 

SIERRA MADRE APPROVING TEMPORARY USE PERMIT 15-05 FOR A HOUSEHOLD HAZARDOUS 
WASTE ROUND-UP ON AUGUST 15, 2015”.  This Resolution allows for the closure of the 
southern portion of the Mariposa Parking Lot on Friday, August 14, 2015 at 6:00 a.m. 
continuing through Saturday, August 15, 2015 until 5:00 p.m. for the HHW Round-up, including 
set-up and break-down time. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE SIERRA MADRE CITY COUNCIL, 
SUCCESSOR AGENCY AND PUBLIC FINANCE AUTHORITY    Page 7 of 24 
June 9, 2015 

 
 
 
1f). APPROVAL OF RESOLUTION NO. 15-27 FOR THE AMENDED AND RESTATED VERDUGO FIRE 

COMMUNICATIONS SERVICE AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITIES OF BURBANK, GLENDALE, AND 
PASADENA AND THE CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 

 
Staff is recommending that the City Council approve Resolution No. 15-27 “A RESOLUTION OF 
THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SIERRA MADRE APPROVING THE AMENDED AND RESTATED 
VERDUGO FIRE COMMUNICATIONS SERVICE AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITIES OF BURBANK, 
GLENDALE, AND PASADENA AND THE CITY OF SIERRA MADRE” 

The annual cost of contracting with Verdugo Fire Communications is a per incident charge of 
$72.00 multiplied by the actual number of calls dispatched during the preceding calendar year.  
Beginning July 1, 2015 and during any renewal period, the per-incident charge may be 
increased each fiscal year by an amount not to exceed 5% per incident. 

Alternatives: 

1). The City Council may approve Resolution No. 15-27 for the amended and restated 
Verdugo Fire Communications Agreement and authorize the City Manager to execute 
documents on behalf of the City of Sierra Madre. 

2). The City Council may choose not to approve Resolution No. 15-27.  The City of Sierra 
Madre will be responsible for its own dispatch services. 

Staff recommends the City Council approve Resolution No. 15-27 and authorize the City 
Manager to execute documents on behalf of the City of Sierra Madre. 

 

Mayor, John Capoccia, announced that the next billing the residents will receive, if they exceeded their water 
use for May and June, there will be penalties.  Also, the Mayor asked staff if they are capturing all the water 
from flushing fire hydrants? 

Mr. Inman stated, “Yes”. 

Council Member, Denise Delmar, questioned if there are reasons to schedule a meeting in August, can it be 
done? 

The City Manager stated, “Yes”. 

The Mayor opened for public input and there was none. 

Council Member, Rachelle Arizmendi moved and it was seconded by Council Member, Denise Delmar for 
approval of the Consent Calendar as presented by staff.  The motion passed by unanimous voice vote. 

 
 



 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE SIERRA MADRE CITY COUNCIL, 
SUCCESSOR AGENCY AND PUBLIC FINANCE AUTHORITY    Page 8 of 24 
June 9, 2015 

 

2). 2015-2016 ASSESSMENT DISTRICTS – PUBLIC HEARING AND RESOLUTION OF CONFIRMATION NO. 15-
24 AND RESOLUTION NO. 15-33 SETTING ASSESSMENT RATES FOR AD VALOREM MAINTENANCE 
DISTRICTS 1, 3A AND 3B. 

Kev Tcharkhoutian, City Engineer, gave the staff report. 

The provisions of the Landscaping and Lighting Act of 1972 require that the City Council conduct a 
public hearing to confirm assessments and to notify affected property owners.  In addition Section 
22566 of the California Streets and Highway Code requires the City Engineer to prepare a report of the 
City’s intention to levy assessments for the subsequent fiscal year. 

It is recommended that the City Council: 

Open the public hearing, receive input, and 

1). Adopt Resolution No. 15-24 “A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SIERRA 
MADRE, CALIFORNIA, CONFORMING THE LEVY OF ASSESSMENTS FOR FISCAL YEAR 2015-2016 
IN CONNECTION WITH DISTRICT NO. 3 (CENTRAL BUSINESS DISTRICT LANDSCAPE 
MAINTENANCE); DISTRICT NO. 5 (CENTRAL BUSINESS DISTRICT PARKING), COMMUNITY 
FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 1, E.MIRAMONTE SEWER DISTRICT, AND E BONITA SEWER DISTRICT, 
FOR FISCAL YEAR 2015-2016, AND APPROVING THE ENGINEER’S REPORT FOR FISCAL YEAR 
2015-2016”. 

2). Adopt Resolution No. 15-33 “A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SIERRA 
MADRE CONFIRMING THE TAX RATES APPLICABLE IN CONNECTION WITH THE CITY’S LIGHTING 
MAINTENANCE DISTRICTS FOR FISCAL YEAR 2015-2016”.  

Mr. Tcharkhoutian, City Engineer, asked staff to open this item for public hearing, accept input and close 
public hearing.  Mr. Tcharkhoutian announced that all assessments remain the same. 

The Mayor opened for public input and there was none. 

Mayor Pro Tem, Gene Goss, moved and it was seconded by Council Member, Denise Delmar, for approval of 
staff’s recommendations.  The motion passed by unanimous voice vote. 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE SIERRA MADRE CITY COUNCIL, 
SUCCESSOR AGENCY AND PUBLIC FINANCE AUTHORITY    Page 9 of 24 
June 9, 2015 

 
3). CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT 14-07 (CUP 14-07) AND VARIANCE 15-01 (VAR 15-01) – REQUEST TO 

ALLOW VERIZON WIRELESS TO INSTALL A NEW WIRELESS TELECOMMUNICATIONS FACILITY ALONG 
THE EAST SIDE OF THE PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY ON OAK MEADOW ROAD AND 230 FEET NORTH OF EAST 
ORANGE GROVE AVENUE 

Vincent Gonzalez, Director of Planning and Community Preservation, gave the staff report.  Mr. 
Gonzalez also had a slide presentation to present to the City Council and residents.  He also announced 
that a representative from Verizon Wireless was present if the City Council had any questions. 

The applicant Verizon Wireless, has submitted a request for a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) and 
Variance (VAR) to allow the replacement of an existing 35-foot-high Southern California Edison pole 
and installation of a new 59-foot 6-inch-ple that includes a stealth wireless telecommunications facility 
with one (1) antenna.  Pursuant to Section 17.93.060, all wireless telecommunications facilities located 
within the public right-of-way shall require approval of a conditional use permit.  Pursuant to Code 
Section 17.93.050.A 10, a variance is required for wireless facilities located less than 50 feet from a 
residential property line.  

At its May 7, 2015 meeting, the Planning Commission recommended approval of Conditional Use 
Permit 14-07 and Variance 15-01 to the City Council. 

Staff recommends that the City Council approval Conditional Use Permit 14-07 and Variance 15-01, 
pursuant to City Council Resolution No. 15-28 “A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SIERRA MADRE APPROVING CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT 14-07 AND VARIANCE 15-01 TO REPLACE AN 
EXISTING 5-FOOT-HIGH SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON (SCE) POLE WITH A NEW 39 FOOT 6-INCH-
HIGH SCE POLE THAT INCLUDES A VERIZON WIRELESS STEALTH TELECOMMUNICATIONS FACILITY WITH 
ONE ANTENNA WITHIN 50 FEET OF A RESIDENTIAL PROPERTY LINE ALONG THE EAST SIDE OF THE 
PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY ON OAK MEADOW ROAD AND 230 FEET NORTH OF WEST ORANGE GROVE 
AVENUE” 

Council Member, Rachelle Arizmendi, remarked that there will be a meter box 4’ tall installed 
next to the pole and drought tolerant bushes around it. 
 
Mayor Capoccia also noted that the Planning Commission approved this item on May 7, 2015.  
The Mayor followed by opening up for public input and there was none. 
 
Council Member, Rachelle Arizmendi moved and it was seconded by Council Member, Denise 
Delmar, for approval of staff’s recommendation.  The motion passed by unanimous voice vote. 

 

 

 

 
 



 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE SIERRA MADRE CITY COUNCIL, 
SUCCESSOR AGENCY AND PUBLIC FINANCE DIRECTOR    Page 10 of 24 
June 9, 2015 

 

4). CONSIDERATION OF ALTERNATE SCHEDULE FOR TESTING AND USE OF THE EMERGENCY HORN 
 Elaine Aguilar, City Manager, gave the staff report. 

Mayor Capoccia requested consideration of this item.  In October 2008, the City Council provided 
direction regarding the reactivation of the fire/emergency horn.  The horn had been inoperable for a 
period of time, when a group of residents requested that the horn be repaired and used for emergency 
notification.  The Council authorized the horn to be repaired, and authorized the 5:00 p.m. daily testing 
of the horn.  It took longer than anticipated until the horn was put into daily testing mode. 

The horn began daily testing in approximately January 2015.  Since that date, staff has received 
complaints from two residents regarding the horn.  The Council was also contacted.  The item was 
placed on the agenda so that the Council could discuss this matter and determine whether the testing 
schedule should be altered. 

Alternatives: 

1. The City Council could take no action, in which case the testing schedule would be unchanged. 
2. The City Council may make modifications to the testing schedule. 
3. The City Council could discontinue the use and testing of the horn. 
4. The City Council could discontinue the testing of the horn, but allow the horn to be used in 

emergencies only. 
5. The City Council could request additional information and direct staff to return to a future meeting. 

Staff is recommending that the City Council provide staff with direction. 

Council Member, Denise Delmar, asked our staff promotes the Radio Station 1630? 

The City Manager stated, “We did e-blasts in January and not much has been done publicly since. 

Mayor Capoccia remarked that Ed Tracy, former Fire Chief, cut the horn back in 1999 to once per month.  
What was original purpose of horn? 

The City Manager noted that the horn was installed in 1940’s.  Volunteer firefighters responded previously – 
there is a different use now.  Firefighters dispatch now.  An event that we would use the horn would be the 
wind storms we had.  The No. 1 complaint, everything is technology based.  There was no cell phones.  The 
only way to receive emergencies was your radio in your car or battery operated radio for information. 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 



REGULAR MEETING OF THE SIERRA MADRE CITY COUNCIL, 
SUCCESSOR AGENCY AND PUBLIC FINANCE AUTHORITY    Page 11 of 24 
June 9, 2015 

 

Mayor Capoccia asked how the horn could help? 

The City Manager stated that the emergency radio station could tell you where to avoid, pick up batteries, 
charge phone, etc. 

Council Member, Denise Delmar, asked what the decimal level was on the horn? 

The City Manager stated that she didn’t know.  It hasn’t been tested for 8 years.  Under horn the decimal level 
is 90 and three blocks away about 80 decimals. 

Larry Giannone, Police Chief, remarked that the actual equipment is on metered scale. 

Mayor Capoccia opened for public comment. 

George Maurer, Suffolk Avenue 

Mr. Maurer wanted to comment on the horn.  It was done by volunteers.  We go back many years.  The 
bell was in Old North Church and would summon the Search and Rescue Team.  It was followed with 
air raid siren.  It was decided that we needed another system.  The air horn would blow a certain 
number that would alert the firefighters as to the area of concern.  The residents would turn their 
radio on to get information.  I responded to 5,000 emergency calls. 

 

The Mayor thanked Mr. Maurer for his comments. 

Anna Lisa Law, North Baldwin 

Ms. Law stated that the horn was on once a month at one time.  Our business resides in a house.  
Fourteen years ago the horn sounded off at noon, not 5:00 p.m.  You knew the horn would ring.  You 
could feel vibration inside of you.  You felt it.  It could cause a heart attack.  I saw a woman drop her 
mother off and then park.  We have a lawn and wall.  The horn blasted as her daughter got back in her 
car.  The woman used the wall to help her.  She was very scared.  I called City Hall then.  I would be on 
the resident’s side if injuries.  A client of mine believes that short bursts, she doesn’t feel are 
detrimental, environmental engineers can measure.  Maybe someone could come and diminish sound.  
I have a video done by an employee a couple weeks ago of family walking by and family member fell. 

Barbara Leigh Cline, E. Sierra Madre Blvd. 

Ms. Cline stated, “I love the fire horn”.  We are fortunate to still have George Maurer.  The fire horn 
told me the time.  I would like the fire horn in Kersting Court.  I would like the horn to be kept in our 
unique town.  We are very lucky to have it. 

 

 

 



 
 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE SIERRA MADRE CITY COUNCIL, 
SUCCESSOR AGENCY AND PUBLIC FINANCE AUTHORITY    Page 12 of 24 
June 9, 2015 

 
 

Paul Housepian 

Mr. Housepian remarked that the horn goes off at 5:00 p.m.  In the downtown area it could be 
disturbing.  Every day is unnecessary.  Test once a month.  It’s a nuisance. 

Glenn Putnam, Oak Crest 

Mr. Putnam stated that a former citizen was in favor of the horn – Father Gara was a special person 
and wore a t-shirt “Save the Horn”! 

Caroline Brown, Alta Vista Drive 

Ms. Brown remarked that she was involved in the horn for emergency purposes.  We need to be 
educated in emergencies.  Changes to test at different sequence works.  Residents can go to Radio 
station 1630 for emergencies.  Three blasts has to be loud.  Maybe go to normal siren.  Three blasts is 
not a test. 

Bill Coburn 

 I understand we have an old system.  Maybe have two levels of sound. 

Gary Hood, N. Baldwin 

Mr. Hood stated, “This is great!  Maybe once a day is too much.  We are reminding people that we 
have a radio station.  We are lucky to have the fire horn and radio station. If sound is concern, re-
evaluate a suitable time.  Horn is good for the community. 

Mayor Capoccia closed public input. 

Mayor Capoccia asked staff if we could have two different levels of sound. 

The City Manager, “Not really”. 

Mayor Pro Tem, Gene Goss, asked if the horn could be moved to Kersting Court? 

The City Manager stated that it needs a back-up generator and install a pole.  We also need electricity. 

Steve Heydorff, Fire Chief,  

Fire Chief Heydorff noted that the bell was at the Old City Hall in the 1940’s.  It was moved to 
Montecito. 

 

 

 



 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE SIERRA MADRE CITY COUNCIL, 
SUCCESSOR AGENCY AND PUBLIC FINANCE AUTHORITY    Page 13 of 24 
June 9, 2015 

 
 

George Maurer 

Mr. Maurer stated that the horn is mechanical equipment.  If you don’t test every day, how will we 
know when it isn’t working.  Reliability is the whole thing.  The horn is enough for emergency service.  
The Ted Willis property, north of Carter, geological engineer noted that there is a fault at Carter to 
Catholic Church.  There is a MWD water pipe. 

Mayor, John Capoccia, asked the City Council how often should we test? 

Council Member, Rachelle Arizmendi, noted that the first time she heard the siren, it was a tornado.  I realize 
the importance of emergency response time.  It’s important for the City.  I like the horn.  We should continue 
using the fire horn.  I would like once a week.  Be consistent with it.  Go to the radio station 1630 to tune into 
for emergencies.  I will consider. 

Council Member, Denise Delmar, noted that we were all used to tornado sirens in Okhahoma.  We are by a 
freeway.  I live two blocks from the horn.  Dogs get scared.  I heard about height difference.  Is it only at 80 
decimals?  I prefer once a week, and not at busy time.  Friday’s at 5:00 p.m. are good. 

Mayor Pro Tem, Gene Goss, stated that he can be persuaded that it is necessary as part of emergency 
preparedness.   If the test is less frequent, maybe less dependable.  For once a week, move to higher level. We 
need to mitigate the problems we are hearing. 

Mayor, John Capoccia, stated that to sound the horn once a week, we don’t know if it would malfunction.  
Let’s try once a week and discuss in one year.  Staff needs to log incidences. 

Council Member, Rachelle Arizmendi, stated that if staff finds that the horn is experiencing not working, let us 
know. 

Mayor, John Capoccia, stated that once a week, Friday at 5:00 p.m. for now.  Suggest communicate with 
residents about Radio 1630 if three blasts it is an emergency. 

Mayor, John Capoccia, moved for approval to change the Fire Horn test to once per week, and revisit in one 
year.  Log maintenance and complaints.  Council Member, Rachelle Arizmendi seconded the motion and asked 
that if there is a malfunction, notify the City Council.  The motion passed by unanimous voice vote. 

Fire Chief, Steve Heydorff, stated that it will take one week to change. 

 

 

 

 

 
 



 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE SIERRA MADRE CITY COUNCIL, 
SUCCESSOR AGENCY AND PUBLIC FINANCE AUTHORITY    Page 14 of 24 
June 9, 2015 

 
 

5). FISCAL YEAR 2015-2017 BUDGET REDUCTION ALTERNATIVES; CONTRACTING AND SERVICE LEVEL 
REDUCTIONS: 

 Elaine Aguilar, City Manager, gave the staff report. 

 A copy of the May 26th staff report was attached to the Agenda regarding possible budget reductions 
and contracting options.  (The report has been slightly revised.  A few of the details for Public Works, 
Planning & Community Preservation, and the Library have been updated.  The changes are noted on 
the detailed attachments to the report).  These reports are all available at City Hall for public review. 

 At the May 26th meeting, the City Council reviewed proposed budget reductions by department.  The 
Council also preliminarily reviewed the contracting options for Police Services, Paramedic Services and 
Library Services.  There was consensus to form committees to review the proposal for Police and 
Library services, but no committees were formed.  There was also consensus to form a revenue 
exploratory committee, but no committee was formed.  Additionally, no formal action was taken with 
respect to the proposed budget reductions.  The Council wanted to wait for the input received at the 
June 6th Town Hall meeting, before taking further action. 

 This staff report was prepared before the June 6th Town Hall meeting occurred.  Staff will be 
summarizing the results of the Budget Town Hall Meeting and will provide information on Monday, 
June 8th. 

 Staff recommends that the Council either consider the adoption of a one-year budget for Fiscal Year 
2015-2016, or provide direction regarding the preparation of the Biennial FY 2016-2017 Budget.  It 
should be noted that the one-year budget would contain the non-detailed multi-year cost projections 
that are normally prepared in the budget document. 

 If direction is provided this evening, staff can return to the June 23rd meeting with the necessary 
documentation for budget adoption.  The resolutions can be prepared, and departmental level detail 
will be provided, very similar to the Mid-Year 2014-2015 staff report on tonight’s agenda.  However, 
the actual Approved budget Document would be presented at the July 14th meeting, because it will 
take more than two weeks to prepare the budget document.  The Council could “receive and file” the 
budget document because the budget would have been adopted on June 23rd. 

 If the Council needs more time to provide direction, a possible alternative would be for staff to return 
to the June 23rd meeting with the appropriate documentation for spending authority for the first 
couple of months of the new fiscal year. 

  

 

 

 



 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE SIERRA MADRE CITY COUNCIL, 
SUCCESSOR AGENCY AND PUBLIC FINANCE AUTHORITY    Page 15 of 24 
June 9, 2015 

 
 

NEXT STEPS: 

 There are a number of next steps for consideration: 

1. The Council could create Contract Proposal Review Committees for the Library and Police services 
proposals. 

2. The Council could create a Revenue Exploratory Committee to evaluate and recommend revenue 
enhancement options. 

3. The Council could provide direction regarding budget reductions, using the Level 1, 2, 3 options 
presented in the May 26th staff report. 

4. The Council could authorize staff to include revenue increases in the FY 2015-2016 budget such as: 
a. Building and Planning Fees 
b. Overnight Parking Permits 
c. Parking Citations 
d. Fire/Paramedic Response Fee 
e. Special Event Fees 
f. Any other fees 

(Staff will provide additional information regarding fees, at the meeting). 

As an alternative, the Council could task the Revenue Committee with evaluating and making 
recommendations regarding revenue increases. 

Total cost saving options presented in this report range from $317,000 to over $1M. 

Alternatives: 

The City Council has the following options: 

1. The City Council could provide direction regarding the implementation of any of the budget 
reduction options, or fee increases, and direct staff to return with a Proposed Budget for 
Council consideration at the next meeting. 

2. The City Council could provide direction regarding the creation of proposal evaluation 
committees or a revenue exploratory committee. 

3. The Council could request additional information. 
4. Any other options the Council desires. 

It is recommended that the City Council provide staff with direction. 

Council Member, Denise Delmar, stated that what she is hearing is that the residents want different revenues. 

 

 

 



 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE SIERRA MADRE CITY COUNCIL, 
SUCCESSOR AGENCY AND PUBLIC FINANCE AUTHORITY    Page 16 of 24 
June 9, 2015 

 
City Manager, Elaine Aguilar, stated that the agenda dated May 26th lists Level 1, 2 and 3 reductions.  The City 
Council needs to direct the reduction they want to see.  A fee study is in the agenda.  The Planning 
Department is requesting two new fees for NPDES and grading plan checks and grading inspections - a 
recommendation of a deposit against the actual cost.  With regard to the Police Department, the outside court 
subpoenas are set by the State.  Could increase annual overnight citations, overnight parking in police parking 
lot.   The Fire Department response/dispatch fee could be addressed – if a resident goes to the hospital they 
receive bill/health insurance pays, if there is no transport it is suggested $72.00 be charged, or calculate a 
higher fee for overhead.  Other fees to address are Administration Citation Fee, False Alarm fee.  You are not 
approving the fee schedule tonight, just providing direction. 
 
Mayor, John Capoccia, asked the City Council how they wanted to organize the recommendations? 
 
Mayor Pro Tem, Gene Goss stated, “Begin with the need for subcommittees”. 
 
Mayor Capoccia stated: “What about options on fees?” 
 
The City Manager stated, “Increases in fees increases revenues”. 
 
Mayor Capoccia remarked that we really need to give direction on subsidizing reserves? 
 
Council Member, Rachelle Arizmendi stated that we need to address four items: 
 1). Subcommittees. 
 2). Fees. 
 3). Specific direction on 2016 Year subsidy/current year. 
 4). Exploring revenue sources. 
 
Council Member, Denise Delmar remarked that we have to do subcommittees; contracting out Police 
Department, and contracting out the Library.  We need due diligence for all. 
 
Mayor Capoccia opened for public input. 
 
Steve Stapenhorst, Teresa Lane 
 

Mr. Stapenhorst has been a resident for 21 years.  He attended the Town Hall Meeting.  We don’t want 
cuts in public safety, and Library.  We used to have a pool for City use and our family used the services.  
We value the things that are important.  The Volunteer Fire Department, look at charts – you get what 
you pay for.  Residents need to pay.  We need to get UUT back in front of the public.  Encourage you do 
this ASAP. 

 
 
 
 
 



 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE SIERRA MADRE CITY COUNCIL, 
SUCCESSOR AGENCY AND PUBLIC FINANCE AUTHORITY   Page 17 of 24 
June 9, 2015 

 
 
Steve Syverson 
 

Mr. Syverson remarked that he moved here from Wisconsin.  He thanked the City Council for the Town 
Hall Meetings.  He suggested a per capita sales tax at $25.00/person.  Maybe annex top end of Mall!  I 
advocate for UUT.  If you want this kind of life, advocate UUT.  Maybe $20.00 fee on car registrations 
come to City.  Is it possible? 

  
 Jeff Dapper, Laurel Avenue 
 

Mr. Dapper thanked the City Council for the Town Hall meeting, it was great!  Some residents support 
UUT.  We have revenue issues.  Staff is on reduced hours.  We don’t have sales tax revenue – could we 
suggest $30.00/month?  Come up with something.  We need steady flow of income.  We need big 
money.  We need revenue.  Don’t stop services. 

 
Frances Garbaccio, Adams Street 

Ms. Garbaccio told City Council she ran Yard Sale on Saturday so she was unable to attend Town Hall 
Meeting.  The City Council has an obligation to maintain level of services.  Use reserves!  Place 
something on the ballot – new UUT with no sunshine date!  I will support.  The last time the UUT was 
on the ballot there was misinformation.  I am willing to pay my fair share for all services.  Sit in the 
Library and see who comes through the door – the people are very appreciative.  As our 
representatives, you will do what you can.  Thank you for your service. 

Barry Ziff, Trustee, Friends of the Library 

Mr. Ziff wishes to reiterate what everyone has said.  The Town Hall Meeting was great.  I acknowledge 
change in attitude and I am looking at facts.  More people realize we need a tax.  Let us know your true 
feelings.  Our City Council is in support of UUT, Services and programs.  Regarding the Library, we made 
30% reductions since 2011.  We have two major events – Art Show and Wine Tasting.  Without these, 
our culture will change.  With subcommittees, use budget surplus and reserves.  Bring back UUT at 10% 
without sunset.  The goal of the Library is to preserve the past and inspire the future. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 



 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE SIERRA MADRE CITY COUNCIL, 
SUCCESSOR AGENCY AND PUBLIC FINANCE AUTHORITY   Page 18 of 24 
June 9, 2015 

 
 

Paul Housepian 

Mr. Housepian stated, “You get what you pay for”.  Prop 13 limited the amount of tax that can be 
assessed.  I came to Sierra Madre in 2003.  2011 my Mother passed away.  I voted for Joe Mosca.  
There is one central theme – budget woes!  Continue with UUT – when it was defeated it was mind 
boggling to me.  Staff knows what our City needs to thrive.  City Council wants to preserve Sierra 
Madre.  Council Members Denise Delmar and Rachelle Arizmendi, you voted no on UUT.  You share a 
responsibility as to where we are now.  Where will our City be in five years?  I will leave you with an 
incident in 2006 with MWD – in case of emergency, a pipeline was suggested.  Council Members 
Zimmerman and Watts opposed.  Council Members Enid Joffe and John Buchanan wanted to hook up.  
The City is in the hands of the citizens.  What do you want – it is up to you.  Again, “You get what you 
pay for”. 

Glenn Putnam, Oak Crest 

 Mr. Putnam read a document from Rob Stockly: 

You have crucial decisions to make.  The Town Hall meeting was good first step.  I strongly encourage 
the City Council to explore the General Fund.  Use the 2015 surplus to offset 2015-2016.  Earmark 
portion of reserves to balance the budget.  The City Council has reduced expenses.  However, Level 1 
would cripple the City.  I have two recommendations:  In-depth analysis and put community members 
on the subcommittees.  They will find resolutions to UUT.  Please use resources available to you.  Be 
methodical in the processes.  I appreciate the difficult decisions you have to make.  A parcel tax for the 
Library would be good.  The City Council could have interaction with their counterparts in Arcadia and 
Pasadena.  Consider paramedics out of Arcadia.  Thank you. 

Mayor Capoccia thanked Mr. Putnam on behalf of Rob Stockly. 

Barbara Leigh Cline, E. Sierra Madre Blvd. 
 

Ms. Cline stated that budget problems are nothing new in Sierra Madre.  I can’t afford $30.00/month.  I 
am happy for those on Prop 13.  What has changed is retirement funds from State PERS.  Fire 
Department, Paramedics, all remain the same.  City supported safety for Police and Fire.  Paramedics 
came in and funded two years.  Like the Orange Grove Fire Station, it can work for us.  If UUT comes 
back, it needs a sunset clause.  We don’t have a large business district.  If UUT comes back, keep at 
comfortable level.  We need subcommittees.  No UUT without a sunset.  How much funding can 
employees pay for benefits? 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE SIERRA MADRE CITY COUNCIL, 
SUCCESSOR AGENCY AND PUBLIC FINANCE AUTHORITY   Page 19 of 24 
June 9, 2015 

 
De Alcorn, E. Grand View 
 

Mr. Alcorn stated that he concern is “we nickel and dime”.  The streets and infrastructure are not kept 
up.  We haven’t had adequate budget.  You discuss cutting Community Services, and Children’s 
programs.  Do we want a City or not?  Revenues need to be addressed.  The UUT revenue has gone 
down.  A parcel tax to cover police and/or Library can be considered. We need a solid budget.  We 
need a parcel tax that you can rely on.  I suggest you do whatever you need to get Prop 218 ASAP.  Use 
reserves for now.  Once you give away services, it is hard to get them back. 

 
Steve Tanner, Ida May Lane 
 

Mr. Tanner remarked that we had reserves in 2014.  Our goal was to build up reserves.  Don’t cut 
services.   

   

Debbie Bamburger 

Ms. Bamburger stated, “This is a revenue issue”!  Given that reality, what do we do?  In my family, if I 
need more revenue – my first step is not to call realtors, but to look at the savings account, or a second 
job.  The first step is not selling the house.  Cutting here and there is kicking the can down the road.  
What is projected surplus?  Was it planned one year ago?  What are specific amounts in reserves?  
What is committed reserves?  What are unassigned reserves?  It looks to me like you should take 
unassigned reserves and surplus and you will be okay for one year.  We do need a steady stream of 
revenue.  You can consider the UUT with no sunset, a parcel tax.  The City Council worked very hard to 
pass the UUT.  To now consider cuts!  You cannot maintain certain services without the UUT. 

Mayor Capoccia asked the City Manager what the reserves are and the projected surplus this year: 

The City Manager stated the following: 

 

The approximate projected Surplus this year is $350,000.  As of June 30, 2014, the Council’s General Fund 
reserve policy of 50% of General Fund revenues has been met; which is approximately $4M.  There are 
approximately $1.2M in committed reserves, for items, such as $400,000 Street Projects.  There is 
approximately $553,000 in unassigned, uncommitted General Fund reserves. 

 

  

 

 
 
 
 



REGULAR MEETING OF THE SIERRA MADRE CITY COUNCIL, 
SUCCESSOR AGENCY AND PUBLIC FINANCE AUTHORITY    Page 20 of 24 
June 9, 2015 

 
The City Manager noted that the City Council can change uncommitted funds and they can change the reserve 
amount. 
 
Mayor Capoccia asked the City Council if they were all in agreement of “Committees”? 
 
Council Member, Denise Delmar, noted that Arcadia does not want to participate, along with Pasadena in the 
contracting out.  With regard to CalPERS, if we would pull out, it would cost millions. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem, Gene Goss, stated “I want a good argument about subcommittees”.  I studied the budget.  I 
have a solid idea of where I would like us to go.  After the last meeting discussion regarding contracting out, 
Police and Library, I have no interest – I am opposed.  How much data do we need?  The residents expressed 
their concerns.  We have cut things to the bone.  I am opposed to contracting out the pool.  It seems to me, if 
you want subcommittees – why are we delaying? 
 
Mayor Capoccia stated. “It may have some value”. 
 
Council Member, Denise Delmar stated that subcommittees aren’t delaying anything.  My whole goal is 
stabilized budget.  If using UUT for programs and salaries, we need to stabilize.  The Town Hall Meeting was to 
show facts and budget concerns.  The UUT sunset.  The people who showed up could help us in finding 
revenues.  If not UUT, what can we do?  Do we want to put it on the ballot?  We need to get input on raising 
revenues. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem, Gene Goss, remarked that Council Member, Denise Delmar, is sincere.  Your involvement in 
the Town Hall Meeting was productive.  With regard to contracting out the Police Department, do we really 
want to talk about it?  Let’s look at Level 1, 2 and 3 cuts. 
 
Council Member, Rachelle Arizmendi, stated that we need to move forward on subcommittees.  It will be time 
well spent.  With regard to Library and Community Commission, we have lots of eyes on it.  Report back.  It 
won’t delay decisions. 
 
Mayor, John Capoccia, stated, What if whatever we put out there fails?  What are the options for the Police 
and Library? There are serious problems with them.  We need more information.  I see it as a completely 
different option.  On the revenue side, I don’t want to assume the UUT is the way to go.  The parcel tax may be 
the way to go.  I am willing to make decisions on items now. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem, Gene Goss, stated, We need to make decisions on the budget in two weeks. 
 

Mayor, John Capoccia, stated that we need to direct the staff on balancing the budget.  The committees will 
work on revenue sources.  Examine the Police and Library contracting out.  There is value to going through the 
exercise. 

Mayor Pro Tem, Gene Goss, noted that what we are deciding on is the 2015-2016 budget. 

Mayor Capoccia noted that for the 2016-2017 budget, we would need to cut deep. 



REGULAR MEETING OF THE SIERRA MADRE CITY COUNCIL, 
SUCCESSOR AGENCY AND PUBLIC FINANCE AUTHORITY   Page 21 of 24 
June 9, 2015 

 
Council Member, Rachelle Arizmendi, stated that tonight we are dealing with the 2015-2016 budget.  The 
parcel tax can be addressed in two or three years.  The UUT can be addressed in 9 months.  There are 
timelines to consider. 
 
Council Member, Denise Delmar, stated that we can only look at 2015-2016 now.  The community in 2012-
2013 didn’t pass the UUT.  We need to collect data.  The majority said they wanted to increase revenues, 
parcel tax, city tax, UUT on ballot.  That will determine what happens in 2016-2017.  Maybe we can make cuts.  
We need to be prudent at every level. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem, Gene Goss, stated that he would be on board for subcommittees.  We are putting off the 
2016-2017 budget indefinitely.  I would use surplus.  We should have been prepared to make decisions. 
 
Mayor, John Capoccia, noted that we need to give the City Manager direction on the 2015-2016 budget.  We 
can put aside subcommittees for now.  Staff wants us to give direction tonight and return on June 23rd with 
budget or Staff can draft resolutions to continue status quo for three months. What do you want to do?  I am 
ready tonight to prepare the budget. 
 
Council Member, Rachelle Arizmendi, asked if we were going to address the Police Department contracting, 
the Library contacting and subcommittees? 
 
Mayor, John Capoccia, asked the City Council to tackle the budget.  What cuts can we live with?  What 
reserves? 
 
Council Member, Denise Delmar, remarked that she is willing to go ahead with Level 1 reductions in all 
departments, except Community Services, and use reserves. 
 
Council Member, Rachelle Arizmendi, stated that we need to be fiscally responsible.  Are we making 
reductions on Level 1 and include Community Services?  The Level 1 cuts would be $677,000.  We can get the 
difference form Reserves. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem, Gene Goss, asked how much was in surplus? 
 
The City Manager said $356,000. 
 
Mayor, John Capoccia, noted that Pure Level 1 and Community Services, along with approximately $85,000 
from reserves would balance the budget. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem, Gene Goss, stated that at the last meeting I was willing to, but we are sending the wrong 
message.  I thought we would have serious plan to pay for cuts.  I can’t support.  We need a revenue measure.  
It is obvious we need revenue measure. 
Council Member, Denise Delmar, noted that we can’t come up with budget then. 
Mayor Capoccia stated, “Forget about the two-year budget”. 
The City Manager said that we can do a one-year budget and project out. 
 



 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE SIERRA MADRE CITY COUNCIL, 
SUCCESSOR AGENCY AND PUBLIC FINANCE AUTHORITY    Page 22 of 24 
June 9, 2015 

 
Mayor, John Capoccia, stated:  “We all know something needs to happen in two years – we need to pass a 
one-year budget”. 

Mayor Pro Tem, Gene Goss, stated, “Are we giving direction tonight?” 

Council Member, Rachelle Arizmendi, stated that we need to make extreme cuts and use reserves.  What we 
have is to give direction on the 2015-2016 budget.  Make Level 1 cuts and Rollovers, and $85,000 from 
Reserves.  If we have a resolution for “holding pattern”, we need direction tonight for two weeks.  To approve 
the 2016-2017 budget, we can’t forecast for revenue stream. 

Council Member Delmar questioned if we should get a revenue committee tonight. 

Mayor Capoccia said, “What direction do we want to give?”  I am not willing to go through cuts – they are 
devastating.  We have healthy reserves, let’s spend.  Let’s not cut and continue with budget with reserves until 
we review the revenues. 

Council Member, Rachelle Arizmendi, stated that it is irresponsible for us to not make cuts.  Expenses do not 
meet revenues.  We are minimally impacting the departments with the Level 1 cuts.  We received the 
expertise of each department head on the Level 1 cuts. 

Mayor, John Capoccia, asked regarding the Level 1 cuts – are we suggesting certain departments and not 
others?  I propose cutting Administration (hours), Library, take a slice out of the rest without specifying.  Let 
staff make cuts. 

City Manager, Elaine Aguilar, noted that with regard to the Fire Department, take half of 20 – that would help 
the situation.  With regarding to Planning, take half, that would leave a cushion. 

Council Member, Denise Delmar noted that $121,000 is Administration and part time is $30,000.  If we add 
the $30,000, we can keep City Hall open. 

The City Manager stated, “Yes”. 

Council Member, Rachelle Arizmendi, noted that we are considering $200,000 out of Reserves; $360,000 Roll 
Over and $200,000 in cuts. 

Mayor Capoccia, does everyone agree with these reductions? 

Mayor Pro Tem, Gene Goss, stated, “Bring back in two weeks to debate”. 

City Manager, Elaine Aguilar, noted that there was no action on Plan Check Fees and using ICC.  We need 
direction on Planning Department (Variances and CUP’s)  What percent do you want – 100% or 75%, we want 
70%.  You need to adopt fees. 

 

 

 



 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE SIERRA MADRE CITY COUNCIL, 
SUCCESSOR AGENCY AND PUBLIC FINANCE AUTHORITY   Page 23 of 24 
June 9, 2015 

 
 
Mayor Pro Tem, Gene Goss noted that he has concerns about increasing the price of CUP’s.  We need sense of 
pricing effect. 

The City Manager noted that she couldn’t tell them where the threshold is.  If you are comfortable with the 
present fees, leave as is. 

Council Member Rachelle Arizmendi stated, “They look like steep numbers – we need recovery rate. 

Mayor Capoccia noted that we are not doing full cost recovery – the citizens subsidize. 

Mayor Pro Tem, Gene Goss noted that it is done to encourage people to improve their homes – I am not in a 
hurry to raise rates. 

Mayor Capoccia remarked that he doesn’t want the citizens to subsidize.  We need to ramp up.  I propose 85% 
across the board – Minors 50% and Majors 48%.  You can tweak. 

Council Member, Denise Delmar noted that she feels that is a big jump – take all up 10%. 

The City Manager noted that a decision was not made on major variances and standard CUP’s. 

Council Member, Rachelle Arizmendi, would put up 75% on Major; and others 85%.  10% on Minor CUP’s and 
variances. 

The City Manager asked about NPDES and deposit against grading fee and grading inspections. 

Mayor Capoccia asked why staff needed a deposit? 

Bruce Inman, Director of Public Works, noted that we had them pay at the end, but they wanted to know the 
cost for the permit. 

Mayor Capoccia is in favor of fees and the Police Subpoena fee we will refer to State fees. Leave annual 
overnight parking fees as is.  I am not in favor of increasing. 

Council Member, Denise Delmar, asked what other cities were charging?  She will find out. 

The City Manager noted that we will leave as is for now.  With regard to Fire Department dispatch fee, what is 
your direction?  This is a new fee. 

Mayor Capoccia asked the City Manager if she had sufficient direction at this time to proceed and she said yes. 

The City Manager noted that staff will bring back the resolutions, approval of the budget and documents will 
be available in one month. 

 

 

 



 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE SIERRA MADRE CITY COUNCIL, 
SUCCESSOR AGENCY AND PUBLIC FINANCE AUTHORITY   Page 24 of 24 
June 9, 2015 

 
 

FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS:  None 

 

ADJOURNMENT: 

Council Member, Rachelle Arizmendi moved and it was seconded by Mayor Pro Tem, Gene Goss for approval 
of adjournment at 10:14 p.m. 

 

 

 

      ________________________________________   
       John Capoccia, Mayor 

 

Minutes taken and typed by: 

 

Nancy Sue Shollenberger 
City Clerk 











































































































































CITY OF SIERRA MADRE

FEE SCHEDULE
 FY 2015-2016

Note: This Fee Schedule does not include all fees, rates, or charges that may be imposed

by the City of Sierra Madre.  Examples of excluded items include, but are not limited to,

development impact fees, utility rates and connection fees, fees imposed by and passed through

to other agencies, and punitive fines and penalties.

Table of Contents

FEE SCHEDULE PAGE

Administrative Fees 2 

Planning and Zoning Fees 4 

New Construction Permit Fees 8 

Building and Safety Permit Fees 11 

Public Works Fees 14 

Library Fees 18 

Facility Rental Fees 20 

Field, Park, Garden Plot, and Banner Fees 23 

Film Permit Fees 25 

Aquatics and Recreation Class Fees 27 

Police Fees 29 

Fire Fees 31 

Utilities 33 

Many of the fees listed in the Master Fee Schedule are applied on an hourly basis and are structured to recover the full 

cost of service for each activity type.  The City will apply the following hourly rate against recorded time to determine the 

fee amount owed by each applicant.  Hourly rates from other departments may also apply if staff from those other 

departments perform work on a specific application or request for service.  Additionally, the City will pass-through to the 

applicant any discrete costs incurred from the use of external service providers if required to process the specific 

application.  The City may impose a contract administration fee of 15% on the value of contracted services.

For services requested of City staff which have no fee listed in this Master Fee Schedule, the City Manager or the City 

Manager's designee shall determine the appropriate fee based on the following hourly rate for staff time involved in the 

service or activity.

Adopted on 6/24/14
1 of 38



Fee Code
Current Fee

FY 2014-2015
Proposed Fee
FY 2015-2016

Unit

Administrative Fees

Annual Business License Fees
New Business License Issuance

Multiple a) Home Occupation $217 $219 per year
Multiple b) Contractor $297 $299 per year
Multiple c) All Other Businesses $319 $321 per year
Multiple d) 30 Day Contractor $149 $150 per year

Business License Renewal
Multiple a) Home Occupation $118 $119 per year
Multiple b) Contractor $197 $198 per year
Multiple c) All Other Businesses $168 $169 per year
Multiple d) 30 Day Contractor $99 $100 per year

License/Permit Fees - Other
City Contractor Business License

CON001    a)  New $160 $161 each
CONR01    b) Renewal $85 $86 each

3117 One-Day/Special Event License Fee $37 $38 per event; must have 
established beginnng and 

ending date and time

3116 Solicitor Permit $108 $109 per person, per day
TOBACCO Tobacco Retailer License Fee $0 $0 per year

3120 Vending Machine License Fee $43 $44 per machine, per year
Reproduction Fees

COPIES a) Copying and/or Printing $0.50 $0.50 per page
RECORD 

REQ
b) Public Records Request ( Copying/Printing) $0.06 $0.06 per page

DVVDS c) Copying Tapes or DVDs $16 $17 each
Returned Check Fees

RET CK a) First Check $37; plus bank fees $37; plus bank fees each
RET CK b) Each Subsequent Check $37; plus bank fees $37; plus bank fees each

Dial-A-Ride Fees
DAR001 a) Dial-A-Ride Inside City (Seniors/Handicapped) $2 $2 one way; with voucher
DAR002 b) Dial-A-Ride Outside City (Seniors/Handicapped) $2 $2 one way; with voucher
DAR003 c) Fixed Route Service - General $2 $2 one way

Adopted on 6/24/14 Administrative Fees, 2 of 38



Fee Code
Current Fee

FY 2014-2015
Proposed Fee
FY 2015-2016

Unit

Administrative Fees

DAR004 d) Fixed Route Service - Children /
Senior (Over 65) / Handicapped

$1 $1 with City ID card

Dog License Fees
a) Neutered $25 $26 each
b) Unneutered $41 $42 each
c) Neutered - For Seniors (Over 65) $11 $12 each
d) Unneutered - For Seniors (Over 65) $26 $27 each

Dog Park Tag Fees
DOG-PRK a) Senior Resident $0 $0 each

DOG-
PRKS

b) All Other Residents $0 $0 current 

Late Penalty Payment
Other Fees

GARAGE 
SAL

Garage Sale Application $16 $17 per weekend

Collections 10% 10% per month; max of 100%
of original fee

ADMIN 
STAFF

Administrative Services Staff $116 $117 per hour

Adopted on 6/24/14 Administrative Fees, 3 of 38



Fee Code
Current Fee

FY 2014-2015
Proposed Fee
FY 2015-2016

Recovery Rate

Unit

PLANNING AND ZONING FEES (1)

Zoning Fees

Conditional Use Permit:

CU001 a) Minor $810 $1,050 43% each

CU005 b) Standard $2,893 $4,570 75% each

CU015 c) Hillside Management Zone Actual Cost; plus
15% processing fee

Actual Cost; plus
15% processing fee

each

CU010 d) Extension or Modification Actual Cost; plus
15% processing fee

Actual Cost; plus
15% processing fee

each

CU020 e) Appeals 75% of Original Filing 
F

75% of Original Filing 
F

each

f) Deposit Requirement 100% of Estimated 
Cost and processing 

fee

100% of Estimated 
Cost and processing 

fee

each

Variance

VAR001 a) Minor $810 $1,050 43% each

VAR005 b) Major $2,893 $4,570 75% each

PZ001 Zone Change Application $6,063 $6,906 85% each

PZ005 General Plan Amendment $6,063 $6,906 85% each

PZ010 Municipal Code Text Amendment $6,063 $6,906 85% each

Home Occupation Permits

PZ015 a) Affidavit $26 $31 85% each

PZ020 b) Administrative Discretionary $305 $347 85% each

PZ025 Second Dwelling Unit Permit $1,821 $2,074 85% each

PZ030 Zoning Verification Letter $305 $347 85% each

Environmental Fees

Fish and Game Fee (State) ‐ EIR Filing
Fish and Game Fee (State) ‐ Negative declaration filing
Fish and Game Fee Exemption

Adopted on 6/24/14 Planning Zoning Subdivison Fees, 4 of 38



Fee Code
Current Fee

FY 2014-2015
Proposed Fee
FY 2015-2016

Recovery Rate

Unit

PLANNING AND ZONING FEES (1)

EVN001 Categorical Exemption $153 $154 75% each

EVN005 Initial Study - Negative Declaration $2,274 $2,286 75% each

EVN010 Initial Study - Mitigated Negative Declaration $6,063 $6,094 75% each

EVN015 Environmental Impact Report Actual Cost; plus
15% processing fee

Actual Cost; plus
15% processing fee

each

EVN020 Geotechnical Report Review Actual Cost; plus
15% processing fee

Actual Cost; plus
15% processing fee

each

Development Impact Fees

Development Impact Fees
Noticing Fees

Noticing Publication and Postage

NF001 a) Director Review Only $305 $307 75% each

NF005 b) Planning Commission Only $608 $612 75% each

NF010 c) Planning Commission and City Council $760 $764 75% each

Sign Permit

SGN001 a) Temporary $153 $154 75% each

SGN005 b) Temporary - Admin Review $305 $307 75%

SGN010 c) Administrative Review Required $305 $307 75% each

SGN015 d) Planning Commission Review Required $608 $612 75% each

Mills Act Fee

MILL001 Mills Act Application $1,783 $1,792 75% each

Temporary Use Fees

Temporary Use Permit:

TU010 a) Block Party $49 $49 20% each

TU005 b) All Other Uses Not Linked to a Special Event
or Civic Event

$122 $123 20% each

Adopted on 6/24/14 Planning Zoning Subdivison Fees, 5 of 38



Fee Code
Current Fee

FY 2014-2015
Proposed Fee
FY 2015-2016

Recovery Rate

Unit

PLANNING AND ZONING FEES (1)

Copies and Print Services

OTH025 Copy of General Plan Map (Large - Plotter Size) $16 $17 100% per page

OTH030 Copy of Zoning Map (Large - Plotter Size) $16 $17 100% per page

OTH035 Copy of General Plan w/o Binder $0.06 $0.06 100% per page

Other Fees

OTH005 Request for Public Facilities Fee Reduction/Waiver $792 $796 20% each

OTH010 Pre-Application Review $534 $537 20% each

OTH015 Request for Planning Consultation or Letter $82 $83 20% per request

SUBDIVISION FEES

PZ055 Parcel Map - Tentative/Vesting Tentative Actual Cost; plus
15% processing fee

Actual Cost; plus
15% processing fee

each

PZ050 Tract Map - Tentative/Vesting Tentative Actual Cost; plus
15% processing fee

Actual Cost; plus
15% processing fee

each

PZ070 Final Parcel Map Review Actual Cost; plus
15% processing fee

Actual Cost; plus
15% processing fee

each

Final Tract Map Review Actual Cost; plus
15% processing fee

Actual Cost; plus
15% processing fee

each

PZ075 Map Extension Actual Cost; plus
15% processing fee

Actual Cost; plus
15% processing fee

each

PZ080 Map Amendment Actual Cost; plus
15% processing fee

Actual Cost; plus
15% processing fee

each

PZ035 Lot Line adjustment application and review Actual Cost; plus
15% processing fee

Actual Cost; plus
15% processing fee

PZ040 Lot Merger application and review Actual Cost; plus
15% processing fee

Actual Cost; plus
15% processing fee

each

Adopted on 6/24/14 Planning Zoning Subdivison Fees, 6 of 38



Fee Code
Current Fee

FY 2014-2015
Proposed Fee
FY 2015-2016

Recovery Rate

Unit

PLANNING AND ZONING FEES (1)

Deposit Requirement 100% of Estimated 
Cost and processing 

fee

100% of Estimated 
Cost and processing 

fee

each

STAFF HOURLY RATE
DEVSTAFF Planning & Community Preservation Staff $203 $205 100% per hour

PWSTAFF Public Works Engineering Staff $141 $142 100% per hour

DEPOSIT REQUIREMENTS Deposits will be 
required to begin 
work; based upon 
estimated time to 
complete project 

Deposits will be 
required to begin 
work; based upon 
estimated time to 
complete project 

Deposits will be 
required to begin 
work; based 
upon estimated 
time to complete 
project 

Adopted on 6/24/14 Planning Zoning Subdivison Fees, 7 of 38



Fee Code
Current Fee

FY 2014-2015
Proposed Fee
FY 2015-2016

Unit

NEW CONSTRUCTION FEES

Building Permit Fees (1)
PC001 Preliminary Plan Check $397 $399 each

$1 to $4,000
PC002 a) Plan Check $397 $399 each
BP001 b) Permit $202 $204 each

$4,001 to $25,000
PC003 a) Plan Check $694-$940 $697-$945 each
BP002 b) Permit $387 for the first $4,000, 

plus $24.34 for each add'l 
$1,000, or fraction thereof, 
to and including $25,000

$389 for the first $4,000, 
plus $24.46 for each add'l 
$1,000, or fraction thereof, 
to and including $25,000

each

$25,001 to $50,000
PC003.5 a) Plan Check $893-$1057 $897-$1062 each
BP003 b) Permit $976 for the first $25,000, 

plus $14.20 for each add'l 
$1,000, or fraction thereof, 
to and including $50,000

$981 for the first $25,000, 
plus $14.27 for each add'l 
$1,000, or fraction thereof, 
to and including $50,000

each

$50,001 to $100,000
PC004 a) Plan Check $1,390 for the first $50,000, 

plus $12.89 for each add'l 
$1,000, or fraction thereof, 
to and including $100,000

$1,397 for the first $50,000, 
plus $12.95 for each add'l 
$1,000, or fraction thereof, 
to and including $100,000

each

BP004 b) Permit $1,340 for the first $50,000, 
plus $14.20 for each add'l 
$1,000, or fraction thereof, 
to and including $100,000

$1,347 for the first $50,000, 
plus $14.27 for each add'l 
$1,000, or fraction thereof, 
to and including $100,000

each

Adopted on 6/24/14 New Construction Permit Fees, 8 of 38



Fee Code
Current Fee

FY 2014-2015
Proposed Fee
FY 2015-2016

Unit

NEW CONSTRUCTION FEES

$100,001 and Up
PC004.5 a) Plan Check $2,055 for the first 

$100,000, plus $9.60 for 
each add'l $1,000, or 

fraction thereof

$2,065 for the first 
$100,000, plus $9.65 for 

each add'l $1,000, or 
fraction thereof

each

BP005 b) Permit $1,741 for the first 
$100,000, plus $10.05 for 

each add'l $1,000, or 
fraction thereof

$1,750 for the first 
$100,000, plus $10.10 for 

each add'l $1,000, or 
fraction thereof

each

SMIP Fee (2)
BP009 a) Residential Valuation Amount

X 0.0001
Valuation Amount

X 0.0001
per permit

BP010 b) Commercial Valuation Amount
X 0.00028

Valuation Amount
X 0.00028

per permit

Building Standards Administration 
Special Revolving Fund Fee (3)
Permit Valuation:

BP015 $1-25,000 $1 $1 Senate Bill No. 1473 
mandated fee.

BP015 $25,001-50,000 $2 $2 Senate Bill No. 1473 
mandated fee.

BP015 $50,001-75,000 $3 $3 Senate Bill No. 1473 
mandated fee.

BP015 $75,001-100,000 $4 $4 Senate Bill No. 1473 
mandated fee.

Building Permit valuation based on current International Code Council (ICC) 

Adopted on 6/24/14 New Construction Permit Fees, 9 of 38



Fee Code
Current Fee

FY 2014-2015
Proposed Fee
FY 2015-2016

Unit

NEW CONSTRUCTION FEES

BP016 Every $25,000 or fraction thereof above 
$100,000

Add $3 Add $3 Senate Bill No. 1473 
mandated fee.

STAFF HOURLY RATE

DEVSTAFF Planning & Community Preservation Staff $203 $205 per hour
PWSTAFF Public Works Engineering Staff $141 $142 per hour

DEPOSIT REQUIREMENTS Deposits will be required to 
begin work; based upon 
estimated time to complete 
project 

Deposits will be required to 
begin work; based upon 
estimated time to complete 
project 

Adopted on 6/24/14 New Construction Permit Fees, 10 of 38



Fee Code
Current Fee

FY 2014-2015
Proposed Fee
FY 2015-2016

Unit

Building and Safety Fees

 Mechanical, Plumbing, and Electrical 

ELE001/MEC
001/PLB001

(1) Includes air handling units, compressors, boilers, forced air units, furnaces, hoods, fans, vents, bathtubs, dishwashers, drinking
fountains, laundry tubs, lawn sprinklers, piping alterations, showers, sinks, toilets, vac breakers, washbasins, water heaters, water 

softeners, home appliances, heating appliances, branch circuits, motors and AC units, outlets and fixtures.

(2) When calculating fees, each ten branch circuits shall be considered one item, and each twenty outlets or fixtures shall be 
considered one item.

ELE001/MEC
001/PLB001

a) 1 - 3 Items/Fixtures $208 $210 each

ELE001/MEC
001/PLB001

b) 4 - 6 Items/Fixtures $297 $299 each

ELE001/MEC
001/PLB001

c) 7 - 10 Items/Fixtures $496 $499 each

ELE001/MEC
001/PLB001

d) 11 - 15 Items/Fixtures $582 $585 each

ELE001/MEC
001/PLB001

e) 16 - 20 Items/Fixtures $743 $747 each

ELE001/MEC
001/PLB001

f) 21 - 25 Items/Fixtures $940 $945 each

ELE001/MEC
001/PLB001

g) 26 or More Items/Fixtures $1,139 $1,145 each

 Other Plumbing Permits/Inspections  

Pool Related Inspections:
PLB005 a) Swimming Pool Piping $594 $597 each
PLB010 b) P-Trap for Pool $99 $100 each

Sewer/Septic Related Inspections:
PLB015 a) House Sewer Connecting To Public Sewer $297 $299 each
PLB020 b) All Other Sewer/Septic Inspections $594 $597 each
PLB025 Water Piping System $397 $399 each

 Other Electrical Permits/Inspections  

ELE020 Motors & AC Units - (Over 10HP) $154 plus $10 per branch $155 plus $10 per branch each
ELE030 Service $185 $186 each
ELE035 Solar $485 $488 each
ELE040 Temporary Power Pole $40 $41 each

Other
Sales of Maps Actual Cost; plus

15% processing fee
Actual Cost; plus

15% processing fee
each

Field Consultation - Per hour after first 15min - in 
15 min increments

Actual Cost; plus
15% processing fee

Actual Cost; plus
15% processing fee

each

Mechanical, Plumbing, and Electrical Permits are each separate Building Permit 
Categories in which mulitple inspections may occur.  Inspections Bundle fees are 

based on number of inspections within a given Building Permit Category.

Adopted on 6/24/14 Bldg and Safety Fees, 11 of 38



Fee Code
Current Fee

FY 2014-2015
Proposed Fee
FY 2015-2016

Unit

Office Consultation - Per hour after first 15min - 
in 15 min increments

Actual Cost; plus
15% processing fee

Actual Cost; plus
15% processing fee

each

Correspondence request - Per hour after first 
15min - in 15 min increments

Actual Cost; plus
15% processing fee

Actual Cost; plus
15% processing fee

each

Request for City Council or Commission Action Actual Cost; plus
15% processing fee

Actual Cost; plus
15% processing fee

each

Public Works Adminisrative Plan Review Actual Cost; plus
15% processing fee

Actual Cost; plus
15% processing fee

each

Consulting Actual Cost; plus
15% processing fee

Actual Cost; plus
15% processing fee

each

DEPOSIT REQUIREMENTS Deposits will be required to 
begin work; based upon 
estimated time to complete 
project 

Deposits will be required to 
begin work; based upon 
estimated time to complete 
project 

Adopted on 6/24/14 Bldg and Safety Fees, 12 of 38



Fee Code
Current Fee

FY 2014-2015
Proposed Fee
FY 2015-2016

Unit

DEM001 Demolition Permit Fee $107 $108 each
OTH020 Photocopying and/or Printing $0.50 $0.50 per page

Extension or Modification 75% of Original Filing Fee 75% of Original Filing Fee each
Commencing Work Without a Permit Double Fee Double Fee each

STAFF HOURLY RATE

Current Fee
FY 2014-2015

Proposed Fee
FY 2015-2016

Unit

DEVSTAFF Planning & Community Preservation Staff $203 $205 per hour
PWSTAFF Public Works Engineering Staff $141 $142 per hour

DEPOSIT REQUIREMENTS Deposits will be required to 
begin work; based upon 
estimated time to complete 
project 

Deposits will be required to 
begin work; based upon 
estimated time to complete 
project 

Adopted on 6/24/14 Bldg and Safety Fees, 13 of 38



Fee Code
Current Fee

FY 2014-2015
Proposed Fee
FY 2015-2016

Unit

PUBLIC WORKS FEES

Grading Fees
Grading Bond

GRD025
a) Up to 1,500 Cubic Yards (1) $3,082 $3,098

Deposit against costs

GRD025
b) Greater than 1,500 Cubic Yards (1) $6,164 $6,195

Deposit against costs

Grading Plan Check

GRD010
Grading Plan Check Deposit $1,420

Deposit against costs

GRD010
Grading Plan Check Actual Cost; plus

15% processing fee
Actual Cost; plus

15% processing fee
per permit          
(estimated)

GRD005 Grading Permit $28 $29 per permit

Grading Inspection

GRD010 Grading Plan Check Actual Cost; plus
15% processing fee

Actual Cost; plus
15% processing fee

per permit          
(estimated)

GRD015
Grading Inspection Deposit $653

Deposit against costs

GRD015
Grading Inspection Actual Cost; plus

15% processing fee
Actual Cost; plus

15% processing fee
per permit          
(estimated)

Drainage/Precise Grading Plan Check Fees
Street/Curb/Pavement/Drive Fees 

SC001 Preliminary Project Review $282 $284  per permit
SC005 Curb Drain/Parkway Culvert $212 $214 per permit
SC010 Driveway Approach $352 $354  per permit

Curb and Gutter Removal and Reconstruction: Actual Cost; plus
15% processing fee

Actual Cost; plus
15% processing fee

 per permit

Excavation - Paved

SC025
a) 0-200 Linear Feet $212 $214

per permit

SC026 b) Greater than 200 Linear Feet $282 $284 per permit
EN085 Excavation Permit $28 $29 per permit

Adopted on 6/24/14 Public Works Fees, 14 of 38



Fee Code
Current Fee

FY 2014-2015
Proposed Fee
FY 2015-2016

Unit

PUBLIC WORKS FEES

Excavation - Unpaved
SC030 a) 0-200 Linear Feet $141 $142 per permit
SC030 b) Greater than 200 Linear Feet $141 $142 per permit

Sidewalk Inspection

SC035
a) 0-200 Linear Feet $214 $216

per permit

SC036
b) Greater than 200 Linear Feet $208; plus $35 per 10 

linear foot
$209; plus $35 per 10 

linear foot
per permit

ADDRESS002 Street Name assignment or change $417 $420 per request
ADDRESS001 Street Address assignment or change $278 $280 per request

Public Improvement Inspection Fees
Public Improvement Inspection (Project Valuation)

PI015
a) Up To $10,000 Actual Cost; plus

15% processing fee
Actual Cost; plus

15% processing fee
per permit

PI015
b) $10,001 - $50,000 Actual Cost; plus

15% processing fee
Actual Cost; plus

15% processing fee
per permit

PI015
c) $50,001-$100,000 Actual Cost; plus

15% processing fee
Actual Cost; plus

15% processing fee
per permit

PI015
d) $100,001-$500,000 Actual Cost; plus

15% processing fee
Actual Cost; plus

15% processing fee
per permit

PI015
e) Greater than $500,000 Actual Cost; plus

15% processing fee
Actual Cost; plus

15% processing fee
per permit

PI015
f) Continuous Inspection (Contract) Actual Cost; plus

15% processing fee
Actual Cost; plus

15% processing fee
per permit

e) Public Improvement Inspection Deposit per permit

Improvement Construction - Plan Check Actual Cost; plus
15% processing fee

Actual Cost; plus
15% processing fee

per permit

Extension Fee

PI010
Review of Project Extension Request Actual Cost; plus

15% processing fee
Actual Cost; plus

15% processing fee
per request

Adopted on 6/24/14 Public Works Fees, 15 of 38



Fee Code
Current Fee

FY 2014-2015
Proposed Fee
FY 2015-2016

Unit

PUBLIC WORKS FEES

Encroachment Fees
EN001 Crane Operation/Lane Blockage $424 $427 per permit
EN005 Fence or Wall $565 $568 per permit
EN010 Irrigation $141 $142 per permit
EN015 Lighting or Minor Structures $141 $142 per permit
EN020 Material Storage $71 $72 per permit
EN025 Oversize Load $71 $72 per permit

EN030
Scaffolding Actual Cost; plus

15% processing fee
Actual Cost; plus

15% processing fee
per permit

EN035 Sidewalk Dining $372 $374 per permit
Labatory Analysis Actual Cost; plus

15% processing fee
Actual Cost; plus

15% processing fee
per analysis

EN040 Sidewalk Sale $120 $121 per permit
EN050 Sign $141 $142 per permit
EN045 Street Closure - (Requires Temporary Use Permit) $193 $194 per permit
EN055 Trash Bin $71 $72 per permit

Removal of Illegal Trash Bin Actual Cost; plus
15% processing fee

Actual Cost; plus
15% processing fee

Landscape and Tree Fees 
LS005 Administrative Tree Review $35 $36 each
LS010 Tree Commission Review $141.00 $142 each

ST006
Tree Replacement/Mitigation Actual Cost; plus

15% processing fee
Actual Cost; plus

15% processing fee
Each

Landscape Plan Check Actual Cost; plus
15% processing fee

Actual Cost; plus
15% processing fee

each

Landscape Inspection:

LS015
a) New Actual Cost; plus

15% processing fee
Actual Cost; plus

15% processing fee
each

LS015
b) Annual Actual Cost; plus

15% processing fee
Actual Cost; plus

15% processing fee
each

LS020
Appeal (TAC) Actual Cost; plus

15% processing fee
Actual Cost; plus

15% processing fee
each

Adopted on 6/24/14 Public Works Fees, 16 of 38



Fee Code
Current Fee

FY 2014-2015
Proposed Fee
FY 2015-2016

Unit

PUBLIC WORKS FEES

Other
Public Works Adminisrative Plan Review Actual Cost; plus

15% processing fee
Actual Cost; plus

15% processing fee
each

FOG001 FOG permit Annual Inspection $212 $214 annually
FOG005 FOG Reinspection Fee $71 $72 per permit
FOG010 Sewer Cleaning Fee $324 $326 annually

NPDES Illicit Discharge Response Fee $213 each

DEPOSIT REQUIREMENTS Deposits will be required 
to begin work; based upon 
estimated time to 
complete project 

Deposits will be required 
to begin work; based upon 
estimated time to 
complete project 

STAFF HOURLY RATE

Current Fee
FY 2014-2015

Proposed Fee
FY 2015-2016 Unit

DEVSTAFF Development Services Staff $203 $205 per hour
PWSTAFF Public Works Engineering Staff $141 $142 per hour

Adopted on 6/24/14 Public Works Fees, 17 of 38



Current Fee 
FY 2014-2015

Proposed Fee
FY 2015-2016

Recovery Rate Unit

LIBRARY FEES

Overdue Fees
Books and Other Print and Digital Materials $0.25 adult &children; 

Maximum fine $17
$0.25 adult &children; 

Maximum fine $17
each, up to maximum

DVD $2 adult &children; 
Maximum fine $32

$2 adult &children; 
Maximum fine $32

each, up to maximum

Miscellaneous
Flash Drive Purchase $11 $12 each
Check-Out Materials Without Library Card $1 $2 per occasion;

three time max
Computer Class Deposit $21 $22 deposit; retained if 

student
does not attend

Copy/Print/Scan - Black and White $0.20 $0.20 per side
Copy/Print/Scan - Color $2 $3 per side
Interlibrary Loan Request $5; Up to 10 requests per 

year; $28 for each 
additional request

$5; Up to 10 requests per 
year; $28 for each 
additional request

per week

Projector or Screen Rental (plus $25 refundable 
deposit)

$16 $17 100% each

Reserve Item Request $1 $1 17% each request
Visitor Pass for Internet $1 $1 33% each
Copies from archives $0.50 $0.50 100% per side
DVD rentals
a) Documentaries and Educational $0.00 $0.00 0% per week
b) Entertainment DVDs $1 $1 17% per week
Lost or Damaged Materials
Bar Code Replacement $12 $13 100% each
Container Replacement - Covers, CD, DVD, Tapes $18 $19 100% each

Library Card Replacement $12 $13 100% each
Replacement of Materials Fee
a) Administrative Processing Fee $16 $17 18%
b) Material Replacement Cost (3)
i) Adult Collection (3)

Adopted on 6/24/14 Library Fees, 18 of 38



Current Fee 
FY 2014-2015

Proposed Fee
FY 2015-2016

Recovery Rate Unit

LIBRARY FEES

a) Hardcover - Fiction $27 $28 100% each
b) Hardcover - Non-Fiction $30 $31 100% each
c) Hardcover - Reference $115 $116 100% each
d) Paperback - Fiction $17 $18 100% each
e) Paperback, Trade - Fiction $19 $20 100% each
f) Paperback - Non-Fiction $19 $20 100% each
g) Paperback, Trade - Non-Fiction $21 $22 100% each
h) Paperback - Reference $58 $59 100% each
i) DVD $23 $24 100% each
j) CD - Audio Book $63 $64 100% each
k) CD - Music $16 $17 100% each
l) MP3 - Audio Book $63 $64 100% each
ii) Children and Young Adult Collection (3)
a) Hardcover - Fiction $20 $21 100% each
b) Hardcover - Non-Fiction $25 $26 100% each
c) Hardcover - Reference $105 $106 100% each
d) Paperback - Fiction $15 $16 100% each
e) Paperback - Non-Fiction $15 $16 100% each
f) Paperback - Reference $79 $80 100% each
Archival Fees
Reproduction Fee - Scanned Digital Image $11 $12 56% each
Archival Use
a) Books, Catalogues, Periodicals:
i) For-Profit $52 $53 per image
ii) Non-Profit $11 $12 per image
b) Film, Video, TV, CD:
i) For-Profit $78 $79 per image
ii) Non-Profit $16 $17 per image
c) Slide Show/Display Image
i) For-Profit $26 $27 per image
ii) Non-Profit $6 $7 per image
d) Loan Processing (Repositories or Institutions) $26 $27 per loan processed

Adopted on 6/24/14 Library Fees, 19 of 38



Current Fee 
FY 2014-2015

Proposed Fee
FY 2015-2016

Recovery Rate Unit

LIBRARY FEES

STAFF HOURLY RATE

Current Fee 
FY 2014-2015

Proposed Fee
FY 2015-2016 Unit

Library Staff - Full-Time $89 $90 per hour
Library Staff - Part-Time $53 $54 per hour

Adopted on 6/24/14 Library Fees, 20 of 38



Current Fee 
FY 2014-2015

Proposed Fee
FY 2015-2016

Recovery Rate Unit

FACILITY RENTAL FEES ***

Community Center - Fireside Room:
A) Local Organization/Non-Profit $374 $376 100% per day

B) Private Group/Individuals $374 $376 100% per day

Community Center - Sierra Madre Room 
A) Daily Rental
  1) Non Profit (10 Hours) $323 $325 50% for 10 hours
  2) Non Profit (6 Hours) $194 $195 50% for 6 hours
  3) Non Profit (Additional Hours) $33 $34 50% per hour
  4) All Others (10 hours) $656 $660 100% for 10 hours
  5) All Others (6 Hours) $394 $396 100% for 6 hours
  6) All Others (Additional Hours) $66 $67 100% per hour
B) Continual Use
  1) Non Profit (Monthly) $157 $158 annually
  2) All Others (Weekly) $520 $523 annually
Hart Park House
A) Daily Rental
  1) Non Profit (10 Hours) $245 $247 50% for 10 hours
  2) Non Profit (6 Hours) $147 $148 50% for 6 hours
  3) Non Profit (Additional Hours) $25 $26 50% per hour
  4) All Others (10 hours) $487 $490 100% for 10 hours
  5) All Others (6 Hours) $292 $294 100% for 6 hours
  6) All Others (Additional Hours) $50 $51 100% per hour
B) Continual Use
  1) Non Profit (Monthly) $157 $158 annually
  2) All Others (Weekly) $520 $523 annually
Community Center - Youth Activity Center
A) Daily Rental
  1) Non Profit (10 Hours) $498 $501 50% for 10 hours
  2) Non Profit (6 Hours) $298 $300 50% for 6 hours
  3) Non Profit (Additional Hours) $51 $52 50% per hours
  4) All Others (10 hours) $993 $998 100% for 10 hours
  5) All Others (6 Hours) $596 $599 100% for 6 hours

Adopted on 6/24/14 Facility Rental Fees, 21 of 38



Current Fee 
FY 2014-2015

Proposed Fee
FY 2015-2016

Recovery Rate Unit

FACILITY RENTAL FEES ***

  6) All Others (Additional Hours) $100 $101 100% per hour
B) Continual Use
  1) Non Profit (Monthly) $157 $158 annually
  2) All Others (Weekly) $520 $523 annually
City Council Chambers:
A) Local Organization/Non-Profit $255 $257 50% per day

B) Private Group/Individuals $507 $510 100% per day

EMT (If Required/Requested) $73 $74 per hour

Facility Attendant/Lifeguard
(If Required/Requested):

$52 $53 100% per hour

Alcohol Permit Fee $89 $90 100% per request
Tables, Chairs * Audio Visual Equipment
   a) Continual User Groups $0 $0 per event
   b) Local Non-profit Organization $259 $261 50% per event
   c) All other renters $517 $520 100% per event

Security Deposit $1,028 $1,034 100% per rental;
refundable, less damages

Recreation Department Staff - Required for 
opening/closing facilities

$52 $53 100% per hour, 2 hour minimum

Return Key Late Fee $26 $27 Per Day

Cancellation Fee:
A) Cancellation 30 or More Days Prior to Event 15% of deposit

retained
15% of deposit

retained
each

B) Cancellation Less than 30 Days Prior to Event 50% of deposit
retained

50% of deposit
retained

each

Adopted on 6/24/14 Facility Rental Fees, 22 of 38



Current Fee 
FY 2014-2015

Proposed Fee
FY 2015-2016

Recovery Rate Unit

FACILITY RENTAL FEES ***

Recreation Staff - Full Time $86 $87 per hour
Recreation Staff - Part Time $52 $53 per hour
Public Works Maintenance Staff $78 $79 per hour

*** Fees for Leagues and Other Organizations requesting frequent use of fields or parks may be subject to Special Use Agreements
negotiated at terms and rates not included in this schedule.

Adopted on 6/24/14 Facility Rental Fees, 23 of 38



Current Fee 
FY 2014-2015

Proposed Fee
FY 2015-2016

Recovery Rate Unit

FIELD, PARK, GARDEN PLOT RENTAL, AND BANNER FEES ***

Field Rental Fees
Ball Field - Lighted field
A) Local Organization/Non-Profit - 2 Hour Minimum $44 $45 51% per hour

B) Private Group/Individuals - 2 Hour Minimum $86 $87 100% per hour

Ball Field - Unlighted field
A) Local Organization/Non-Profit
2 Hour Minimum

$26 $27 50% per hour

B) Private Group/Individuals
2 Hour Minimum

$52 $53 100% per hour

Park Rental Fees
Park Rental 
A) 1 - 100 People:
1) Local Organization/Non-Profit $42 $43 13% per day

2) Private Group/Individuals $83 $84 27% per day

B) More than 100 People:
1) Local Organization/Non-Profit $257 $259 22% per day

2) Private Group/Individuals $514 $517 43% per day

EMT - if requested/required $73 $74 per hour
Community Garden Plot Fees
Community Garden Plot
A) Quarterly Rental - full plot $52 $53 78% per quarter

B) Quarterly Rental - half plot $31 $32 94% per quarter

Adopted on 6/24/14 Field Park Garden Fees, 24 of 38



Current Fee 
FY 2014-2015

Proposed Fee
FY 2015-2016

Recovery Rate Unit

FIELD, PARK, GARDEN PLOT RENTAL, AND BANNER FEES ***

Banner Fees
Downtown District Street Light Pole Banners - Per 
Sign
Banner Hanging - Per Week
Banner Hanging and Removal - Non-Profit Groups 
Only

$212 $214 100% per week

Downtown District Street Light Pole Banner
Hanging and Removal

$1,262 $1,269 100% per request

Sale of City Flag Actual Cost of Flag
plus 15%

Actual Cost of Flag
plus 15%

per flag

STAFF HOURLY RATE
Recreation Staff - Full Time $86 $87 per hour
Recreation Staff - Part Time $52 $53 per hour
Public Works Maintenance Staff $78 $79 per hour

*** Fees for Leagues and Other Organizations requesting frequent use of fields or parks may be subject to Special Use Agreements
negotiated at terms and rates not included in this schedule.
(1) Outside materials may include, but are not limited to, straw/hay bales, ponies, sound systems, bounce houses, etc.

Adopted on 6/24/14 Field Park Garden Fees, 25 of 38



Current Fee 
FY 2014-2015

Proposed Fee
FY 2015-2016

Unit

FILM PERMIT FEES (1)(2)

Still Photography ***
(More than Two Cast and Crew)

$368 $370 per day

Student Filming*** $0 $0 per request
with proper 

documentation

Extra Small Film Productions ***
(5 or Fewer Cast and Crew)

$368 $370 per day

Small Film Productions ***
(Between 6 and 50 Cast and Crew):
A) First Day $1,028 $1,034 per day
B) Each Additional Day $771 $775 per day

Large Film Productions ***
(50 or More Cast and Crew): 
A) First Day $1,692 $1,701 per day
B) Each Additional Day $1,355 $1,362 per day

Any Production Requiring More than Forty
Hours of City Staff Time

Fully burdened hourly 
rate for all staff time

Fully burdened hourly 
rate for all staff time

per hour

Fee for Obtaining/Reviewing
Neighborhood Approval

$52 $53 per hour

City Safety Monitors - as required
Police Personnel $105 $106 
Fire Personnel $105 $106 

Use of City Facilities $1,040 $1,046 per day

Use of City Parking Stalls $11 $12 per stall, per day

Adopted on 6/24/14 Film Permit Fees, 26 of 38



Current Fee 
FY 2014-2015

Proposed Fee
FY 2015-2016

Unit

FILM PERMIT FEES (1)(2)

Refundable Deposit $2,000 against cost $2,000 against cost

Violation of Hour Restrictions
Per production vehicle $1,028 $1,034 per hour
Per personal vehicle $514 $517 per hour
Film Monitor $171 $172 per hour
Police Personnel $210 $212 per hour
Fire Personnel $210 $212 per hour

Cigarette Butts and Debris Pickup $4 $5 

STAFF HOURLY RATE

Current Fee 
FY 2014-2015

Proposed Fee
FY 2015-2016 Unit

Recreation Staff - Full-Time/Film Monitor $86 $87 per hour
Recreation Staff - Part-Time $52 $53 per hour
Fire Staff $105 $106 per hour
Police Staff $105 $106 per hour
Public Works Engineering Staff $138 $139 per hour
Public Works Maintenance Staff $78 $79 per hour
DEPOSIT REQUIREMENTS Deposits will be 

required to begin work; 
based upon estimated 
time to complete 
project 

Deposits will be 
required to begin work; 
based upon estimated 
time to complete 
project 

(1) Fees shown do not include fees required for traffic, fire, and police safety services provided by the City.  
Fees for these services will be billed at the fully-burdened hourly rates shown in this fee schedule.
The City Manager, or the City Manager's designee shall provide
 the hourly rates for assistance from staff not represented via the fully-burdened hourly rates in this fee schedule.
(2) Fees shown do not include business licensing, encroachment fees, or temporary use permit fees that may apply.

Adopted on 6/24/14 Film Permit Fees, 27 of 38



Current Fee 
FY 2014-2015

Proposed Fee
FY 2015-2016

Unit

FILM PERMIT FEES (1)(2)

*** Separate fee applies for productions anticipated to require more than forty hours of City Staff time.

Adopted on 6/24/14 Film Permit Fees, 28 of 38



 Calculated Fee
To Recover 100%
Cost of Service

 for FY 2012-2013 

Current Fee
FY 2012-2013

Current Fee 
FY 2013-2014

Current Fee 
FY 2014-2015

Proposed Fee
FY 2015-2016

Recovery Rate Unit

RECREATION CLASS, SPECIAL EVENT, AND AQUATIC FEES*

Refund or Transfer of Recreation Program Fee $20 $10 $10 $11 $12 50% per request

Recreation Class Split varies 35%/65% 35%/65% 35%/65% 35%/65% of fee

Special Events
Mt. Wilson Trail Race - Adult with shirt $97 $65 $66 $67 $68 67% each
Mt. Wilson Trail Race - Youth with shirt $54 $35 $35 $36 $37 65% each
Huck Finn Day - Fishing Derby $33 $10 $10 $11 $12 30% each
Huck Finn Day - Family Fishing $47 $20 $20 $21 $22 43% each
Huck Finn Day - Campsite $214 $55 $56 $57 $58 26% each
Fourth of July - Parade Entry (Non Profit) $132 $35 $35 $36 $37 27% each
Fourth of July - Parade Entry (Private) $220 $50 $51 $52 $53 23% each
Fourth of July - Firecracker Run Entry (Youth) $88 $15 $15 $16 $17 17% each
Fourth of July - Firecracker Run Entry (Adult) $132 $20 $20 $21 $22 15% each
Oktoberfest - Golf Team $540 $300 $304 $309 $311 56% each
Oktoberfest - Golf Individual $166 $83 $84 $86 $87 50% each
Oktoberfest - Tennis $122 $61 $62 $63 $64 50% each
Oktoberfest - Lunch $60 $30 $30 $31 $32 50% each
Window Painting - Team of Four $125 $25 $25 $26 $27 20% each
Spring Movie Series - Recommended 
Sponsorship

$1,609 $800 $810 $822 $827 50% each

Concerts in the Park - Recommended 
Sponsorship

$2,147 $1,000 $1,013 $1,028 $1,034 47% each

Adult Softball - Team Registration $903 $452 $458 $465 $468 50% each
Adult Softball - Individual $91 $45 $46 $47 $48 49% each
Recreation and Leisure Excursions Actual Cost; plus

15% processing fee
Actual Cost; plus

15% processing fee
Actual Cost; plus

15% processing fee
Actual Cost; plus

15% processing fee

Special Event Permit Fee
Local Non-profit: 1-100 people $50 $51 $52 $53 
Private Group/Individuals: 1-100 people $100 $101 $103 $104 
Local Non-profit: More than 100 people $200 $203 $206 $208 
Private Group/Individuals: More than 100 people $400 $405 $411 $414 

Adopted on 6/24/14 Recreation Class Fees, 29 of 38



 Calculated Fee
To Recover 100%
Cost of Service

 for FY 2012-2013 

Current Fee
FY 2012-2013

Current Fee 
FY 2013-2014

Current Fee 
FY 2014-2015

Proposed Fee
FY 2015-2016

Recovery Rate Unit

RECREATION CLASS, SPECIAL EVENT, AND AQUATIC FEES*

STAFF HOURLY RATE

 Calculated Fee
To Recover 100%
Cost of Service 

Current Fee
FY 2012-2013

Current Fee 
FY 2013-2014

Current Fee 
FY 2014-2015

Proposed Fee
FY 2015-2016

Unit

Recreation Staff - Full-Time/Film Monitor $83 $83 $84 $86 $87 per hour
Recreation Staff - Part-Time $50 $50 $51 $52 $53 per hour
Fire Staff $117 $102 $103 $105 $106 per hour
Police Staff $131 $102 $103 $105 $106 per hour
Public Works Engineering Staff $137 $134 $136 $138 $139 per hour
Public Works Maintenance Staff $75 $75 $76 $78 $79 per hour
DEPOSIT REQUIREMENTS Deposits will be required to 

begin work; based upon 
estimated time to complete 
project 

Deposits will be required to 
begin work; based upon 
estimated time to complete 
project 

Deposits will be required to 
begin work; based upon 
estimated time to complete 
project 

Deposits will be required to 
begin work; based upon 
estimated time to complete 
project 

Adopted on 6/24/14 Recreation Class Fees, 30 of 38



Fee Code
Current Fee 

FY 2014-2015
Proposed Fee
FY 2015-2016

Recovery Rate Unit

POLICE FEES

Vehicle Related Fees
Vehicle Release (Abandoned, Stored, Misc.) (1) $129 $130 49% each
Vehicle Release (D.U.I. - Driver Arrested) (1) $411 $414 69% each
Vehicle Release (Repossession) $17 $18 41% each
Citation Sign-off (Onsite) $13 $14 44% each
Report Fees (2)
Crime Report $2 $3 3% per page;

$33 maximum
Minor Non-Criminal Incident Report Copies -
(1 page) 

$3 $4 10% per page;
$20 maximum

Lost Cell Phone Report - (For Insurance 
Purposes) 

$26 $27 64% each

Traffic Accident Report (Non-Injury) $2 $3 5% per page;
$20 maximum

Traffic Accident Report (Injury) $2 $3 3% per page;
$33 maximum

Fingerprinting and Letter Services
Livescan Fingerprinting $37; plus

pass-thru fees
$37; plus

pass-thru fees
59% each

Fingerprinting (per card)
Clearance Letter $24 $25 100% each
Sign Fees

GARAGE  
SAL

Garage/Yard Sale Permit $16 $17 65% each

Code Enforcement and Nuisance Fees
Illegal Sign Removal Fee (Release Of Property) $52 $53 98% each
Response Due To False Alarm:

a) First False Alarm Response $0 $0 per response

b) Two False Alarm Responses $102 $103 per response

b) Third  or More Responses $203 $205 per response

Response Due To Loud Party Disturbance:
a) First Response $0 $0 per response
b) Each Additional Response billed hourly with 2 hour 

min;
plus 15% administration 

cost

billed hourly with 2 hour 
min;

plus 15% administration 
cost

per response

Adopted on 6/24/14 Police Fees, 31 of 38



Fee Code
Current Fee 

FY 2014-2015
Proposed Fee
FY 2015-2016

Recovery Rate Unit

POLICE FEES

Emergency D.U.I. Response Fees
Emergency Response To D.U.I. Related Collision 
(up to a $1,000 max)

Actual Cost; plus
15% processing fee

Actual Cost; plus
15% processing fee

per hour

Overnight Parking Permit Fees
PRK Annual Permit $87 $88 1% per permit

Nightly $3 $4 6%
Permit Sticker Transfer or New Sticker $4 $5 23% per sticker
Other Fees
Administrative Citation First Offense $103 $104 100% each
Administrative Citation Second Offense $206 $208 100% each
Administrative Citation Third or more offense $514 $517 100% each
Alarm Permit: original application $83 $84 160% each
Alarm Permit: annual renewal $52 $53 annual renewal
Carry of a Concealed Weapon Permit - 
Investigation (Per hour - 2 hour min. non-
refundable set by State of California)

$120 $121 100% each

Off-Site Vehicle inspection fee $58 $59 100% each
On-Site Vehicle inspection fee $28 $29 100% each
Overnight Parking Permit Including Investigation $2 $3 100% each
Special instruction Clases (plus cost of class 
training)

$30 $31 100% each

Notice of City Code violation $54 $55 100% each
LA County / Pasadena booking Fee Actual Cost plus 20% 

Administrative fee
Actual Cost plus 20% 

Administrative fee
each

STAFF HOURLY RATE

Current Fee 
FY 2014-2015

Proposed Fee
FY 2015-2016

Unit

Patrol Staff $142 $143 per hour
Dispatch/Records Staff $85 $86 per hour
Code Enforcement Staff $100 $101 per hour
Outside Court Supoena (per employee per 
request)

Set by State Set by State set by State

Adopted on 6/24/14 Police Fees, 32 of 38



Fee 
Code

Current Fee 
FY 2014-2015

Proposed Fee
FY 2015-2016

Unit

FIRE FEES

Annual Fire And Life Safety Inspection 

Annual Fire And Life Safety Inspection $68 $69 per half hour;
half hour minimum

EMS/Paramedic Subscription Fee
EMS EMS/Paramedic Subscription Fee $60 $60 per person

Fire Permit
Fire Permit $68 $69 each
Reports
Fire Report $68 $69 each
Medical Report $68 $69 each
Appearance/Standby Fees
Court Appearance and Office Hearing /
Non-Compliance

$135 $136 per hour;
2 hour minimum

Fire Watch $135 $136 per hour;
2 hour minimum

Fire Department Training Class Fee
Fire Department Training Class Actual Cost; plus

25% processing fee
Actual Cost; plus

25% processing fee
each

Response Fees
Response Due To False Alarm:

a) First False Alarm Response $0 $0 per response

b) Two False Alarm Responses $102 $103 per response

b) Third  or More Responses $203 $205 per response

Illegal Burning Actual Cost; plus
15% processing fee

Actual Cost; plus
15% processing fee

per inspection

Adopted on 6/24/14 Fire Fees, 33 of 38



Fee 
Code

Current Fee 
FY 2014-2015

Proposed Fee
FY 2015-2016

Unit

FIRE FEES

Hazardous Materials Clean-Up Actual Cost; plus
15% processing fee

Actual Cost; plus
15% processing fee

each

Weed Abatement Fees
Weed Abatement Actual Cost; plus

15% processing fee
Actual Cost; plus

15% processing fee
each

Other Fees
Additional Inspection of New System after third 
(per additional inspection)

$135 $136 each

Fire Inspections (Failure to comply) $135 $136 each
Fire Inspections of Commercial and Multi-
Residential (per 20 minutes at $120 per hour)

$135 $136 each

Installation or Removal of undergroud storage 
tanks

$135 $136 each

Review of requested activity - Fire permit $135 $136 each

STAFF HOURLY RATE

Current Fee 
FY 2014-2015

Proposed Fee
FY 2015-2016 Unit

Fire Staff $135 $136 per hour
Engine with 4 staffed positions $636 $640 per hour
Equipment rental

Adopted on 6/24/14 Fire Fees, 34 of 38



Fee 
Code

Current Fee 
FY 2014-2015

Proposed Fee
FY 2015-2016

Unit

UTILITY RATES

New Meter Installation
NMI-001 New meters: 3/4" $656 $660 Minimum Fee - Plus costs over base fee
NMI-005 New meters: 1" $656 $660 Minimum Fee - Plus costs over base fee

NMI-010 New meters: 1" with 1" line
$2,989 $3,004 Refundable Deposit  - Less: Cost, plus 20% 

installation Fee

NMI-015 New meters: 1 1/2" with 1 1/2" line
$4,397 $4,419 Refundable Deposit  - Less: Cost, plus 20% 

installation Fee
NMI-020 New meters: 1 1/2" $884 $889 Minimum Fee - Plus costs over base fee
NMI-025 New meters: 2" $1,114 $1,120 Minimum Fee - Plus costs over base fee

NMI-030 New meters: 2" with 2" line
$5,170 $5,196 Refundable Deposit  - Less: Cost, plus 20% 

installation Fee

NMI-035 New meters: 4" 
$5,371 $5,398 Refundable Deposit  - Less: Cost, plus 20% 

installation Fee

NMI-040 New meters: 4" fire line
$5,371 $5,398 Refundable Deposit  - Less: Cost, plus 20% 

installation Fee

NMI-045 New meters: 4" with 4" line
$6,040 $6,071 Refundable Deposit  - Less: Cost, plus 20% 

installation Fee
Other Meter Charges
Portable water meter rental $1,094 $1,100 Minimum Fee - Plus costs over base fee

Portable water meter deposit
$2,009 $2,020 Refundable Deposit  - Less: damage, rental 

fee, and comsumption

Relocation of existing meter
$669 $673 Refundable Deposit  - Less: Cost, plus 20% 

installation Fee

Reinstall Meter at prior location
Reinstall Meter $78 $79 5/8", 3/4", & 1" meters (each occasion)
Reinstall Meter $78 $79 1 1/2" & 2" meters (each occasion)

Other Fees & Services
New service or termination of existing service $49 $50 Per request
Owner request for seal/unseal meter $80 $81 Per request
Water delinquent turn off/on $80 $81 Per delinquent shut off/on

Adopted on 6/24/14



Fee 
Code

Current Fee 
FY 2014-2015

Proposed Fee
FY 2015-2016

Unit

UTILITY RATES

24 hour notice for turn-off $36 $37 Per occasion

Unauthorized connection to City line
$2,131 $2,142 Fine per citation Plus estimated commodity 

charge

Unauthorized connection to fire hydrant
$2,131 $2,142 Fine per citation Plus estimated commodity 

charge

Unauthorized use or alteration of water meter
$2,131 $2,142 Fine per citation Plus estimated commodity 

charge
Water meter testing $72 $73 Fee for testing, more than 2% error rate
Sale of excess water to other municipalities Based on specific negotiations

Deposit for new water service - Owner occupied 
property

$58 $59 Refund in one year with good payment 
history or $0 deposit with letter from other 
utility co.

Deposit for new water service - Tennant occupied 
property

Up to Three times the highest months bill - 
held until final bill 

Deposit for non/late payment of utility bill
Three times the highest month - held until 12 
mo. on time  payments

After hours service initiation/termination fee $91 $92 Per after hours service request

Sewer
SWR005 Sewer Permit $82 $83 Minimum Permit Fee

Other Sewer Fees
SWR010 Sewer Connection Fee $323 $325 Per connection
SWR015 Sewer Dye test $231 $233 Per request
SWR020 Sewer Stoppage Investigation $114 $115 Per investigation.
SWR025 Saddle Main Line $352 $354 Per request (includes two inspections )
SWR030 Residential Sewer Connection $114 $115 Per request

Adopted on 6/24/14



Utility Rates FY 2011-2012
Current Fee

FY 2012-2013
Current Fee 

FY 2013-2014
Current Fee 

FY 2014-2015 Unit

NPDES
 % Total of Permit Fee $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 pending new ordinance 

Water Fees
Water Consumption (per C.C. 
Resolution 03-010)

Water Consumption Fee Tier 1 
(<36ccf) $1.92 $2.06 $2.21 Per 100 cu. ft. of water (1 unit)
Water Consumption Fee Tier 2 (36 - 
66 ccf) $1.97 $2.12 $2.27 Per 100 cu. ft. of water (1 unit)
Water Consumption Fee Tier 3 (>66 
ccf) $2.00 $2.15 $2.30 Per 100 cu. ft. of water (1 unit)
Water Connection Fee - General - 5/8" 
or 3/4" meter $43.02 $46.26 $49.75 Per connection per bill
Water Connection Fee - General - 1" 
meter $50.20 $53.99 $58.06 Per connection per bill
Water Connection Fee - General - 1.5" 
meter $64.53 $69.40 $74.63 Per connection per bill
Water Connection Fee - General - 2" 
meter $93.22 $100.25 $107.81 Per connection per bill
Water Connection Fee - General - 3" 
meter $172.07 $185.05 $199.01 Per connection per bill
Water Connection Fee - General - 4" 
meter $250.94 $269.87 $290.22 Per connection per bill
Water Connection Fee Multi-units Add-
on $0.00 $0.00 Per Unit per month plus meter fee
Water Connection Fee - low income - 
5/8" or 3/4" meter $27.96 $30.07 $32.34 Per connection per bill
Water Connection Fee - Low Income - 
1" meter $35.14 $37.79 $40.64 Per connection per bill

Effective 
March 2014 

the City 
adopted new 

rates for 
water and 

sewer



New Rates Adopted  and Implemented: March 2014

Water Charges

Meter Size BI-MONTHLY CHARGE
5/8", 3/4" $57.83 $66.01 Per connection per bill
1" $77.66 $88.65 Per connection per bill
1-1/2"  $110.71 $126.37 Per connection per bill
2" $150.36 $171.64 Per connection per bill
3" $242.90 $277.27 Per connection per bill
4" $375.10 $428.17 Per connection per bill

PRIVATE FIRE SERVICE BI-MONTHLY CHARGE
2" $4.57 $5.21 Per connection per bill
4" $28.27 $32.27 Per connection per bill

Low Income Discount:
BI-MONTHLY SERVICE CHARGE

5/8", 3/4" $37.59 $42.91 Per connection per bill
1" $50.48 $57.62 Per connection per bill
1-1/2"  $71.96 $82.14 Per connection per bill
2" $97.73 $111.57 Per connection per bill
3" $157.89 $180.23 Per connection per bill
4" $243.82 $278.31 Per connection per bill

Consumption Charge
1) Residential Tiered Rates ($/CCF)

Water Consumption Fee Tier 1 
(<11ccf) $1.91 $2.21 Per 100 cu. ft. of water (1 unit)
Water Consumption Fee Tier 2 (12-
33 ccf) $2.57 $2.93 Per 100 cu. ft. of water (1 unit)
Water Consumption Fee Tier 3 (34-
66 ccf) $3.05 $3.46 Per 100 cu. ft. of water (1 unit)
Water Consumption Fee Tier 3 (>66 
ccf) $4.07 $4.66 Per 100 cu. ft. of water (1 unit)

2) Non-Residential Rate ($/CCF)
Uniform $2.83 $3.16 Per 100 cu. ft. of water (1 unit)

Sewer Charges
Customer Class
1) Residential $28.09 $29.22 Bi-monthly Charge

2) Non-Residential
 Commercial Institutional $17.02 $17.70 Bi-Monthly Charge

a) Commercial $0.63 $0.65 Cost per CCF
b) Institutional $0.37 $0.39 Cost per CCF






























































































	City Council meeting agenda 6-23-2015
	Unapproved City Council meeting minutes 06-09-2015
	1a - Approving Certain Demands
	1b - TMDL
	tmdl
	tmdl2

	2 - Congestion Management Program
	3 - Budget
	budget 1
	budget 2
	budget 3
	budget 4
	budget 5
	08-Proposed Fee Schedule FY 2015-2016 - 6-16-15

	4 - EWMP
	wimp1
	wimp2
	wimp3
	wimp4
	wimp5

	5 - Reappointment to Commissions
	commission1
	commission2

	6 - Strategic Plan Update
	sp1
	sp2


